
VILLAGES OF WESTPORT 
 Community Development District 

 
AUGUST 19, 2024 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



   Villages of Westport   
  Community Development District 
  475 West Town Place 
  Suite 114  
  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
  District Website:  www.villagesofwestportcdd.com 
August 12, 2024 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Villages of Westport Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Villages of Westport Community Development District Meeting is scheduled for 
Monday, August 19, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. at the Highlands Regional Library, 1826 Dunn 
Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida 32218.  
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 
  
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Public Comments (regarding agenda items below) 
  
 III. Presentation Regarding CDDs 
 
 IV. Acceptance of Vesta Resignation Letter 
 
 V. Ratification of Acknowledgement and Release 
 
 VI. Discussion of Agreement for Mulch Installation 
 
 VII. Consideration of Proposals: 
  A. Landscape Maintenance Proposals 
   1. Yellowstone 
    
   2. VerdeGo 
 
   3. Koehn Outdoor 
 
   4. Brightview 
   
  B. Phase IV (LGI Development) 
   1. Lake Maintenance – Solitude 
 
   2. Landscape - Yellowstone 
 
  C. Irrigation System Replacement Amenity Center 

http://www.villagesofwestportcdd.com/


   1. C&L Landscape 
 
   2. Yellowstone 
 
   3. Down to Earth  
 
 VIII. Information Regarding Insurance Purposes 
  
 IX. Staff Reports 
 A. Manager  
  1. Discussion of New Homebuyer Welcome Letter 
 
  2. Update on Email Blast System and Fitness Room Survey 
 
  3. Discussion of Fountain in Cadley Circle Pond 
 
  4. Discussion of Payment Authorization Process and Financial Reports 
 
 B. Attorney  
  
 C.  Operation Manager - Report 
 
 X. Supervisor’s Request  
 
 XI. Public Comments 
 
 XII. Approval of Consent Agenda 
  A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 22, 2024 Meeting 
 
  B. Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures for the Period 

Ending July 31, 2024 
 
  C. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 
  D. Approval of Check Register 
 
 XIII. Next Scheduled Meeting – October 28, 2024 @ 5:30 p.m. @ Highlands 

Regional Library 
 
 XIV. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



CDD 101
VILLAGES OF WESTPORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT



General Background



What is a CDD?

• Local unit of special purpose government (NOT quasi-government!)
• Established under the Uniform Community Development Act of 1980 

(Chapter 190, Florida Statutes)
• Primary functions:

• Provide a mechanism to finance, construct and maintain high-quality 
improvements and amenities

• Issue tax-exempt bonds to finance cost of public infrastructure
• Maintain roadways, facilities, amenities, common areas, and other public 

improvements
•  Collect revenues and pay operating expenses
• Levies special assessments on lands benefited by improvements



Allowed by Chapter 190, F.S.:
• Construct and maintain public 

infrastructure
• Issue long-term bonds
• Issue short-term bonds 
• Levy and collect non-ad valorem 

assessments for debt service
• Levy and collect operating and 

maintenance assessments
• Contract for services
• Provide security/recreational 

services

Powers of CDDs
NOT authorized by Chapter 190, F.S.:
• Regulate land use/zoning
• Issue building permits
• Issue development orders
• Provide police services
• Enforce code compliance
• Enforce traffic regulations



As a unit of government, a CDD is:
• Subject to the Government in the Sunshine Law 
• Subject to Public Records laws
• Subject to certain reporting and disclosure requirements 
• Subject to bidding requirements for certain projects
•Able to issue tax-exempt bonds to finance public 

improvements
•Able to enjoy the protections of sovereign immunity
• Exempt from sales tax

Unit of Government



CDDs
• Unit of government
• Subject to open government and public 

records laws
• CDD assessments are co-equal with County 

taxes, making them very secure
• Able to finance large improvements through 

bonds, resulting in less financial burden on 
homeowners

• Required to hold public hearings for certain 
actions

• Board begins turnover to resident Board 
members as early as 6 years from 
establishment

• Tax-exempt

CDDs v. HOAs
HOAs

• Private entity (not-for-profit corporation)
• Financing limited to annual assessments, 

shorter-term loans, and other private 
financing

• Required to hold homeowner votes for 
certain decisions

• Turnover to resident control usually occurs 
over a longer period (based on 
percentages of sold lots)

• Has control over deed restrictions on 
private lots



Responsibilities and Control –
VILLAGES OF WESTPORT CDD

CDD
• Stormwater Management 

Facilities
• Utilities (Water Main 

Extensions, Sanitary Force 
Mains, Lift Stations)

• Irrigation and Landscaping 
(common areas)

• Amenity Center and grounds
• Entrance features and signage 

HOA
• Deed restriction enforcement
• Community architectural control
• Irrigation and landscaping (private 

property)
• Homeowners’ driveways and lawns



Key Legal Considerations for Supervisors



Chapter 190, Florida Statutes

• Sets forth all powers and responsibilities of CDDs
• If Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, does not grant the 

power, the CDD – and therefore Supervisors acting in 
their capacity as Supervisors of the CDD – cannot do it.

• Keep in mind:
• CDD has limited authority. 
• CDD must comply with applicable laws, including 

City and County ordinances.



Comply with the Law – Sunshine Law
• The Government in the Sunshine Law (a/k/a Open Records Law), see 

Chapter 286, Florida Statutes & Article I, s. 24, Constitution of the State of 
Florida 

• Constitutional and statutory right of public access to governmental 
proceedings, at state or local level

• Applies to any gathering of two or more members of the same Board to 
discuss some matter which may foreseeably come before that Board for 
action.
• Includes phone calls, text messages, emails, social media
• Applies to conversations with other Board members, not with Staff

• Such discussions can only take place at a meeting that is: (1) noticed, (2) 
open to the public, and (3) where minutes are taken. 

• A quorum (3/5 Supervisors) must be physically present to make any 
decisions



Other Sunshine Law Considerations
• Do not use other individuals (Staff, neighbors, etc.) as a conduit to have a 

conversation between Supervisors.
•  Reasonable notice is required for all Board meetings. This means notice must 

be published in the newspaper and an agenda should be posted at least 7 days 
in advance.

•  An opportunity for public comment is required before the Board takes action.
•  The public must be allowed to attend meetings, but the District is NOT required 

to provide a means for electronic attendance for the public.
•  Secret voting is not allowed.
•  Minutes do not have to be a verbatim transcript.
•  Committees may be subject to the Sunshine Law if they have decision-making 

authority



Narrow Exceptions to Sunshine Law

• Only those exemptions or exceptions expressly provided in 
Florida law are permitted.

• Examples:
• Pending litigation
• Security and fire safety system details



Penalties for Violating Sunshine Law
• Criminal penalties:

• Knowing violation is a 2nd degree misdemeanor which can 
result in sentences of 60 days’ imprisonment and fine of up to 
$500

• Civil fines up to $500
• Civil lawsuits:

• Must pay attorneys’ fees (can be against individuals involved), 
but no damages are awardable

• Removal from office
• Action is considered to be invalid but can cure



• With limited exceptions, documents related to District business 
must be preserved as public records and produced when 
requested.
• We recommend using a separate e-mail address for all 

District business and keeping any hard copy files in a 
separate and easy-to-access place.

• Forward any public records requests to the District Manager for 
processing

Comply with the Law – Public Records



• Supervisors are subject to many of the same ethics laws as county 
and city officials.

• Supervisors must make required financial disclosures. The District 
Manager will provide the required forms (Form 1).

• Do not accept a bribe.
• Avoid conflicts of interest.

• If there is ever an item before you for a vote that would provide a 
special benefit to you, a business associate, or a close family 
member, let District Counsel know so proper steps may be taken.

• See Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, for other ethical considerations

Comply with the Law – Ethics Law



Finance Basics



• Fiscal Year runs from October 1 to September 30. 

• Proposed budget must be adopted before June 15 each year

• Final budget must be adopted after a public hearing before 

October 1 each year. 

• Describes anticipated expenditures and sources of funds. 

• Available on the District’s website: https://www. 

https://villagesofwestportcdd.com

• Funds may be moved amongst line items by motion, but large 

changes may require an amendment by resolution

Annual Budget



• Long term, tax-exempt financing available to the CDD because it is a unit 

of government with authority to issue long-term, tax-exempt debt.

• Must be validated by a court and comply with Florida law.

• May be repaid over up to 30 years.

• Spreading costs over a longer period makes costs more manageable 

for homeowners.

• Costs only paid at the time you own your house – assessments run 

with the land, not the property owner.

• May be refunded to obtain better interest rates

What are Bonds?



Debt Assessments
• Levied to repay bonds
• One-time mailed and published notices and public hearing required
• Usually collected on the County tax roll

Operations & Maintenance Assessments
• Levied to pay annual administrative, operational, and general 

maintenance costs of the District – adopted annually with budget
• Includes reserves and amounts for maintaining current infrastructure
• Mailed and published notices and public hearing required to increase 

above last noticed amount
• Usually collected on the County tax roll

What are Assessments?



• Required by statute
• Must be completed by June 30 each year (unless an 

earlier deadline applies for bonds).
• Available on the Florida Department of Financial Services 

website

Annual Audit



Management and Control of the District



District Manager
• Receives authority from Florida Statute, District policies, and as provided 

in the agreement between the District and the management company.
• The Board makes policy, and the District Manager implements the 

Board’s policies.
• Has “charge and supervision of the works of the District” and is 

responsible for preserving, operating and maintaining improvements, 
facilities, and equipment and for performing such other duties as may be 
prescribed by the Board. §190.007(1), Florida Statutes.

• May hire and fire professional, supervisory, and clerical employees as 
may be necessary and authorized by the Board. §190.007(1), Florida 
Statutes.

Staff Roles and Responsibilities



District Counsel
• Works for the Board, not the District Manager or any Board 

member
• Works with the District Manager and Staff to help protect the 

District from legal perils and achieve its goals

District Engineer
• Assists with the construction of the District’s Capital 

Improvement Plan
• Assists in the acquisition and conveyance of infrastructure
• Assists with permit compliance
• Assists with maintenance of infrastructure

Staff Roles and Responsibilities



The CDD is controlled by an elected 5-member Board of Supervisors.

Phase 1: Landowner Elections
• Initially, Supervisors are elected on an at-large basis by those owning property within 

the CDD.
• 1 acre of land = 1 vote (partial acres are rounded up).
• Candidates must be Florida residents and U.S. citizens.

Phase 2: General Qualified Electors
• Beginning six years after the initial appointment of Supervisors and once the CDD has 

at least 250 qualified electors, Supervisors begin to be elected through the general 
election process.

• Supervisors elected through the General Election process must be qualified electors 
(residents of the District who are at least 18 years old and registered to vote in Polk 
County) and serve four-year terms with staggered expiration dates

Board of Supervisors



Authorized by Chapter 190, F.S.
• Policy making
• Retention of staff to 

implement policy
• Holding staff accountable for 

policy implementation
• Making material business 

decisions for the District (ex. 
whether to issue or refinance 
bonds or enter into significant 
contracts)

Role of the Board
NOT authorized by Chapter 190, F.S.
• Directing on-site staff
• Individual board members are not 

supposed to be operating the 
District, unless delegated some 
limited authority by the Board.



• Receive input from constituents
• Propose new policies or policy changes
• Vote on proposals brought before the Board at 

meetings

Role of Individual Supervisors



• Chair – selected by the Board; has certain powers to sign documents, convene 
meetings, authorize emergency expenditures, and take other actions permitted by 
law, rule, and policy.

• Vice Chair and Assistant Secretaries – 
• Vice Chair fulfills the duties of the Chair when the Chair is absent. 
• Assistant Secretaries who are Board members can fulfill the role of Chair when the 

Chair and Vice Chair are both absent.
• Assistant Secretaries who are not Board members have certain signing/attestation 

authority.

• Treasurer – statutory position; has charge of the funds of the District, required to 
provide a bond and/or insurance and does not need to be a Board member.

• Secretary – responsible for maintaining minutes, retaining records, coordinating 
certain disclosures; required to provide a bond and/or insurance and does not need to 
be a Board member.

District Officers



• Call meeting to order
• Roll Call
• Public Comment (3 minutes, not a question & answer session)
• District Business

• Decisions are made by a majority vote of the Supervisors present (may 
vote by phone if a physical quorum is present)

• Motion, second, all in favor
• District has not adopted Robert’s Rules of Order but does follow 

procedures to maintain decorum

• Public hearings (rules, assessments, etc.)
• Separate published notice
• Separate public comment opportunity

Meeting Procedures



Best Practices for Supervisors



• Because of the Sunshine Law, once a Supervisor posts on social media, another 
Supervisor should not respond to the post.
• Our recommendation is to avoid using social media for District business on an individual 

level.

• If you do post on a social media page, create a copy of that page, and submit it 
promptly to the District Manager’s office.

• DO NOT delete posts.
• If in doubt about the accuracy of any planned posts, please consult with District 

Manager first or direct residents to the District Manager for follow-up.
• If you want to set up your own Facebook or other account where District business 

will be discussed, please consult further with District Manager and District Counsel 
first. There will be technological requirements the Board needs to consider.

• Use person-to-person contact, e-mail and telephone as your primary, or sole, 
means of communication with your constituents.

Social Media



• Anticipate questions regarding your positions on issues that are on the 
agenda.

• Make sure others are prepared.  For example, if you have an engineering 
question, give the District Engineer notice before the meeting. 

• Meeting time is limited and valuable.  All questions on the materials in 
the agenda package should be raised to Staff in advance of the meeting.  

• Identify issues that may need input from District Counsel or the District 
Engineer in advance.  We can help you be proactive in preventing future 
problems and creating efficient agenda items for Board action.

Prepare for Board Meetings,
 Workshops, and Conference Calls



• Avoid requesting last minute agenda items unless time is of the 
essence.

• Avoid audio and/or visual issues.  Let staff know in advance if you 
have a PowerPoint or electronic presentation.

• Be consistent with treatment of the audience and do not perpetuate 
bad habits. For example, it is “audience comments,” not “audience 
questions.” Do not invite questions from the audience unless the 
Board has a formal policy to do so.  

• While it may seem awkward to tell your neighbor to wait until 
audience comments to provide input, that is how effective 
governments operate.

Be Organized



Board Members
• In a meeting, on social media, or in conversations in the community 
• Rarely will commenting negatively on another Board member help the 

community
• Keep criticism to “positions,” not “people”

Staff
• If you have concerns with a Staff member (other than the District Counsel 

or District Engineer who report directly to the Board), speak to the 
District Manager.  If not resolved, bring it to the Board’s attention for 
discussion. 

• If you have concerns with the District Counsel or District Engineer, speak 
to them.  If not resolved, bring it to the Board’s attention for discussion.

Respect Fellow Board Members and Staff



The most successful Boards do not micromanage Staff or engage in the 
day-to-day operation of the District.  

Micromanagement is problematic for many reasons:
• It creates potential liability for the individual Board member.
• It creates potential liability for the District.
• It waters down the protections the District bargained for when it 

hired an independent contractor.
• It creates uncertainty with Staff as to who Staff should take direction 

from. 
• It is inefficient governance.
• It causes friction with other Board members who may not feel the 

same way.

Avoid Micromanagement



QUESTIONS?



For additional information, please contact Kilinski | Van Wyk PLLC at:
 
 Kilinski | Van Wyk PLLC
 Mailing Address:
 517 E. College Avenue
 Tallahassee, Florida 32301
 jennifer@cddlawyers.com; (850) 508-2335
 chrisl@cddlawyers.com; (772) 359-6037

DISCLAIMER: Nothing in this presentation should be interpreted as legal advice. This presentation is intended to 
provide a framework of general legal principles so that a person can ask the right questions to an attorney of their 
choice. This information is not intended to substitute for professional legal advice for any specific situation and does 
not create an attorney-client relationship. You should accept legal advice only from a licensed legal professional with 
whom you have established an attorney-client relationship.

Contact



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 

 

904.355.1831 
245 Riverside Avenue, Suite 250 

Jacksonville, FL 32202 

VestaPropertyServices.com 

 

 
7/19/2024  

 
Villages of Westport Board of Supervisors,  

 

Over the past several years Vesta has worked hard to provide value to the District. In a short period of 

time we have weathered a great deal of changes including eight different Board members, three District 

Managers and two district management companies. Additionally, out of a spirit of partnership, Vesta 

delayed collection of multiple invoices when the District was having difficulties paying their bills. 

We feel that the current circumstances and demands are unsustainable, therefore as of today we are 

issuing notice of sixty (60) days to terminate our contract. We believe that now is a good time for the 

Board to reprioritize what services they desire and what resources they want to allocate so it is clear to 

both the service provider and the board members what the expectations are and that they are resourced 

accordingly. We are happy to work with all parties on a successful transition and support an RFP or 

whatever course of action the Board desires.  

We appreciate the opportunity to have served the residents of Villages of Westport and look forward to 

working with you on the transition. 

  

 

 

Respectfully,  

Dan Fagen 

Regional General Manager 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  









 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 1 

AGREEMENT FOR MULCH INSTALLATION SERVICES BETWEEN THE 
VILLAGES OF WESTPORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND FCM 

INDUSTRIES OPCO LLC D/B/A FIRST COAST MULCH 
 
 This Agreement is made and entered into this 15th day of July 2024, by and between: 
 

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of 
special purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
being situated in Duval County, Florida, with a mailing address of c/o 
Governmental Management Services, LLC, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. 
Augustine, Florida 32092 (“District”), and 
 
FCM INDUSTRIES OPCO LLC, d/b/a First Coast Mulch, a Florida limited liability 
company, with a mailing address of 155 Bartram Market Dr., Ste. 135, PMB 240, 
St. Johns, FL 32259 (“Contractor” and, together with the District, “Parties”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, 
constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure, including among other things, 
certain amenity facilities that include aquatic facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has a need to retain an independent contractor to provide mulch 
installation for those lands more particularly described in Composite Exhibit A attached hereto; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor submitted the proposals attached hereto as Composite Exhibit A 
and represents that it is qualified to serve as a contractor and has agreed to provide to the District 
those services in compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement (“Work”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District desires to enter into this Agreement to have Contractor perform the 
Work as more particularly described herein. 
   
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the parties, the parties agree as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are 
incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 2. DUTIES.   
 

A. Contractor shall perform the Work associated with the mulch installation in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The duties, obligations, and 
responsibilities of Contractor are to provide the material and labor for mulch 
installation, as more specifically described in Composite Exhibit A. 

Docusign Envelope ID: B5F65365-3C61-45D6-A9A1-423B05956F61



 2 

 
B. This Agreement grants Contractor the right to enter District lands which are subject 

to this Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor 
hereby agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations. 

 
C. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, manner and methods by which 

its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District. 
The Work shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably 
acceptable to the District and shall be in accordance with industry standards and best 
practices and this Agreement. 

 
D. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its residents, 

and landowners from damage. Contractor agrees to commence repair of any damage 
resulting from Contractor's activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours.  

 
E. Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of 

waste materials or rubbish caused by operations under this Agreement.  Contractor 
will provide construction safety barriers to keep pedestrians out of construction 
areas.  At completion of the Work, Contractor shall remove from the site waste 
materials, rubbish, tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials.  
If Contractor fails to clean up as provided, the District may do so, and the cost 
thereof shall be charged to Contractor. 

 
SECTION 3. COMPENSATION.   
 

A. As compensation for the Work set forth in this Agreement, the District agrees to pay 
Contractor in an amount equal to Ten Thousand One Hundred Seventy-Five 
Dollars and No/100 Cents ($10,175.00). Such compensation is inclusive of all 
labor, materials, and parts necessary for the Contractor to perform the Work 
identified herein. The District shall not be required to pay any additional 
compensation for Contractor’s lodging or other per diem expenses. Compensation 
under this Agreement shall be paid by the District to Contractor in accordance with 
the Local Government Prompt Payment Act, as set forth in Sections 218.70 et seq., 
Florida Statutes.  

 
B. The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be liable for the payment of any 

additional services, unless the District, through an authorized representative of the 
District, authorizes the Contractor, in writing, to perform such additional services. 
Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional work or 
services.  Upon successful negotiations, the Parties shall agree in writing to an 
addendum, addenda, or change order(s) to this Agreement.  Contractor shall be 
compensated for such agreed additional work or services based upon a payment 
amount acceptable to the Parties and agreed to in writing.  

 
C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to 

Contractor, that all subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers be paid and 

Docusign Envelope ID: B5F65365-3C61-45D6-A9A1-423B05956F61



 3 

require evidence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be 
submitted to the District by those subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers, 
and further require that Contractor provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of 
said indebtedness. Further, the District shall have the right to require, as a condition 
precedent to making any payment, evidence from Contractor, in a form satisfactory 
to the District, that any indebtedness of Contractor, as to services to the District, has 
been paid and that Contractor has met all of the obligations with regard to the 
withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, Workmen’s 
Compensation, Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar payroll 
deductions from the wages of employees. 

 
SECTION 4. TERMINATION.  The District agrees that Contractor may terminate this Agreement 
for cause by providing thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination to the District; provided, 
however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this 
Agreement.  Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement immediately for 
cause by providing written notice of termination to Contractor. The District shall provide thirty 
(30) days’ written notice of termination without cause.  Upon any termination of this Agreement, 
Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all Work rendered up until the effective termination of 
this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or offsets the District may have against Contractor, as 
Contractor’s sole means of recovery hereunder.  
 
SECTION 5. WARRANTY.   

 
A. Contractor hereby covenants to the District that it shall perform the services 

necessary to complete the Work: (i) using its best skill and judgment and in 
accordance with generally accepted professional standards and practices for projects 
of similar design and complexity as the Work; (ii) in compliance with all reasonably 
known applicable federal, state, county, municipal, building and zoning, land use, 
environmental, public safety, non-discrimination and disability accessibility laws, 
codes, ordinances, rules and regulations, including, without limitation, all 
professional registration (both corporate and individual) for all required basic 
disciplines that it shall perform; and (iii) in an expeditious and economical manner 
consistent with the best interests of the District. Furthermore, the Contractor 
covenants and represents to the District that the Contractor has obtained and shall 
maintain throughout the Contractor’s performance of the Work, all licenses required 
by law to perform the Work, and that all such licenses are, and shall continue to be 
throughout the Contractor’s performance of the Work, valid and in good standing. 

 
B. Contractor warrants to the District that all materials furnished under this Agreement 

shall be new, and that all services and materials shall be of good quality, free from 
faults and defects, and will conform to the standards and practices for projects of 
similar design and complexity in an expeditious and economical manner consistent 
with the best interest of the District. Contractor shall replace or repair warranted 
items to the District’s satisfaction and in the District’s discretion.  Neither final 
acceptance of the Work, nor final payment therefore, nor any provision of this 
Agreement shall relieve Contractor of responsibility for defective or deficient 

Docusign Envelope ID: B5F65365-3C61-45D6-A9A1-423B05956F61



 4 

materials or Work.  If any of the materials or Work are found to be defective, 
deficient or not in accordance with this Agreement, Contractor shall correct, remove 
and replace it promptly after receipt of a written notice from the District and correct 
and pay for any other damage resulting therefrom to District property or the property 
of landowner’s within the District.  The foregoing warranties and representations in 
this Section 5 are in addition to any and all warranties set forth in Composite Exhibit 
A. 

 
SECTION 6. INSURANCE.  Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this 

Agreement the following insurance: 
 
 Workers’ Compensation   Statutory 
 
 General Liability 
 
  Bodily Injury   $1,000,000/$2,000,000 
  (including Contractual) 
  Property Damage  $1,000,000/$2,000,000 
  (including Contractual) 

 
Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and property damage 
in connection with any subcontractors’ operation, if any. 

 
 Automobile Liability    Combined Single Limit $1,000,000 
 Bodily Injury / Property Damage    
 
 The District, its supervisors, officers, staff, and employees shall be named as an additional 
insured.  Contractor shall furnish the District with the Certificate of Insurance evidencing 
compliance with this requirement.  No certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it 
provides that any change or termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverages, as 
certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written notice to the District.  
Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the 
State of Florida, and such carrier shall have a Best’s Insurance Reports rating of at least A-VII. 
 If Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required insurance, the District has 
the right but not the obligation to secure such required insurance in which event Contractor shall 
pay the cost for that required insurance and shall furnish, upon demand, all information that may 
be required in connection with the District’s obtaining the required insurance. 
 
 
SECTION 7. INDEMNIFICATION.   

 
A. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its 

officers, supervisors, professional staff, agents, and employees from any and all 
liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, costs, interest, expenses, damages, 
penalties, fines, judgments against the District, or loss or damage, whether monetary 
or otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in connection with the Work to 

Docusign Envelope ID: B5F65365-3C61-45D6-A9A1-423B05956F61



 5 

be performed by Contractor, its subcontractors, its employees and agents in 
connection with this Agreement, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, 
appellate, or settlement proceedings with respect thereto.  Contractor shall 
indemnify the District for any and all percentage of fault attributable to Contractor 
for claims against the District, regardless whether the District is adjudged to be more 
or less than 50% at fault. Contractor further agrees that nothing herein shall 
constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District's limitations on liability 
contained in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute. 

 
B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, 

judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, 
court costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorneys’ fees, 
paralegal fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy 
proceedings), any interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, or judgments against 
the District.  

 
SECTION 8. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION.  Contractor shall keep, 
observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, 
regulations, codes and ordinances.  If Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within 
five (5) days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation 
or an alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or 
subdivision thereof with respect to the Work being rendered under this Agreement or any action 
of Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to terms, 
wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements applicable 
to provision of Work, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within five (5) days 
after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an 
alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective 
immediately upon the giving of notice of termination. 
 
SECTION 9. LIENS AND CLAIMS.  Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for all labor 
employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform under this Agreement.  
Contractor shall keep the District’s property free from any materialmen’s or mechanic’s liens and 
claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason of Contractor’s 
performance under this Agreement, and Contractor shall immediately discharge any such claim or 
lien.  In the event that Contractor does not pay or satisfy such claim or lien within three (3) business 
days after the filing of notice thereof, the District, in addition to any and all other remedies 
available under this Agreement, may terminate this Agreement to be effective immediately upon 
the giving of notice of termination. 
SECTION 10. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY.  Nothing in this Agreement shall 
be deemed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or the District’s limits of liability as 
set forth in section 768.28, Florida Statutes or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall 
inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise 
be barred under such limitations of liability or by operation of law.  

 
SECTION 11. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the 
formal parties herein and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason hereof, to or 

Docusign Envelope ID: B5F65365-3C61-45D6-A9A1-423B05956F61



 6 

for the benefit of any third party not a formal party hereto.  Nothing in this Agreement expressed 
or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than 
the parties hereto any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any 
provisions or conditions hereof; and all of the provisions, representations, covenants and 
conditions herein contained shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties 
hereto and their respective representatives, successors and assigns. 

 
SECTION 12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  The District and Contractor agree and acknowledge 
that Contractor shall serve as an independent contractor of the District. Neither Contractor nor 
employees of Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning or 
application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or 
otherwise.  Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or more 
of such laws with respect to employees of Contractor, if there are any, in the performance of this 
Agreement.  Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation, express or 
implied, on behalf of the District, and Contractor shall have no authority to represent the District 
as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set forth in this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 13. AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete expression of 
this Agreement between the District and Contractor relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement.  To the extent that the provisions of Composite Exhibit A conflict with the provisions 
of this Agreement, this Agreement controls. 
 
SECTION 14. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the District 
and Contractor. 
 
SECTION 15. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by 
the appropriate body or official of the District and Contractor, both the District and Contractor 
have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and Contractor have full 
power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 16. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this 
Agreement (“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 
postage prepaid, or sent overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows: 
 
 
 

A.  If to the District:  Villages of Westport Community Development District  
c/o Governmental Management Services, LLC 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092  
Attn: District Manager 

 
  With a copy to:  Kilinski | Van Wyk PLLC 
      517 E College Avenue 
      Tallahassee, FL 32301 

Docusign Envelope ID: B5F65365-3C61-45D6-A9A1-423B05956F61



 7 

      Attn: District Counsel 
 

B.  If to Contractor:  FCM INDUSTRIES OPCO LLC,  
d/b/a First Coast Mulch 
155 Bartram Market Dr., Ste. 135 PMB 240 
St. Johns, FL 32259 

 
 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only 
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place 
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any 
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, 
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  
Counsel for the District and counsel for Contractor may deliver Notice on behalf of the District 
and Contractor.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the other Parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent 
by providing the same on five (5) days’ written notice to the Parties and addressees set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 
SECTION 17. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  In the event that either the District or Contractor 
is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the substantially 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 
 
SECTION 18. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 
Composite Exhibit A, this Agreement and the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be 
construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.  All actions and 
disputes shall be brought in the proper court and venue, which shall be Duval County, Florida. 
 
SECTION 19. PUBLIC RECORDS.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Composite 
Exhibit A, Contractor understands and agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the 
District in connection with this Agreement may be public records, and, accordingly, Contractor 
agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including 
but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor acknowledges that the designated 
public records custodian for the District is Governmental Managemental Services, LLC 
(“Public Records Custodian”).  Among other requirements and to the extent applicable by law, the 
Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service; 
2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested public 
records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a  reasonable time period at a cost 
that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public 
records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure requirements, 
are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following 
the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public Records Custodian 
of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all public 
records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all applicable  
requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws.  When such public records are 

Docusign Envelope ID: B5F65365-3C61-45D6-A9A1-423B05956F61



 8 

transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are 
exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements.  All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft Word 
or Adobe PDF formats.   
 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT 
THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS, DARRIN 
MOSSING, C/O GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENTAL 
SERVICES, LLC, 475 WEST TOWN PLACE, SUITE 114, ST. 
AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092; PH: 904-940-5850, 
DMOSSING@GMSTNN.COM. 

 
SECTION 20. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such counterparts 
together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument. 
 
SECTION 21. NEGOTIATION AT ARM’S LENGTH.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the parties as an arm’s length transaction.  The parties participated fully in the preparation 
of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel.  In the case of a dispute concerning the 
interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, all parties are deemed to have drafted, chosen 
and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against 
any party. 
 
SECTION 22. ASSIGNMENT.  Contractor may not assign this Agreement or any monies to become 
due hereunder without the prior written approval of the District.  Any assignments attempted to be 
made by Contractor without the prior written approval of the District are void. 

 
 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed this Agreement on the day 

and year first written above. 
       

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
       
       

        
Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
        

 FCM INDUSTRIES OPCO LLC,  

Docusign Envelope ID: B5F65365-3C61-45D6-A9A1-423B05956F61

Yashekia Scarlett



 9 

d/b/a First Coast Mulch 
 
       

 By:        
 Its:         

 
Composite Exhibit A: Mulch Estimates    

Docusign Envelope ID: B5F65365-3C61-45D6-A9A1-423B05956F61



 10 

COMPOSITE EXHIBIT A 
 Scope of Services/Work 

 
 
 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: B5F65365-3C61-45D6-A9A1-423B05956F61



 11 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: B5F65365-3C61-45D6-A9A1-423B05956F61



 12 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: B5F65365-3C61-45D6-A9A1-423B05956F61



 13 

Contractor shall top dress all currently landscaped areas as shown on the maintenance with the mulch types 
and specifications provided herein.  In doing so, Contractor shall ensure that all mulched areas are brought 
to a minimum depth of three (3) inches after compaction. Contractor is responsible for all necessary clean 
up related to this procedure. 
 
Contractor agrees to provide reasonably neat and defined lines along edges of all mulched areas.  In addition 
to the aesthetics of this, it is also done to facilitate mechanical edging of these areas. Additionally, 
Contractor shall properly trench all bedlines adjacent to concrete surfaces. Trenches shall be 3” deep and 
beveled. Mulched beds on slopes adjacent to turf shall also be trenched to a depth of 3” & beveled to reduce 
mulch washout. This procedure has not been practiced in the past and Contractor is to include any additional 
labor in the cost of the mulch for all trenching. Mulch shall not be piled around tree trunks or bases of 
plants. Any mulch “volcanoes” around tree trunks shall be corrected immediately at no additional cost to 
Owner.  
 
Contractor agrees to ensure that mulch caught in plant material will be shaken or blown from plants, so that 
upon completion there is no plant material left covered with mulch.  
 
If, after installation is complete and it is determined that additional mulch is required to attain the required 
total depth of 3”, sufficient mulch shall be supplied by Contractor at no additional cost to District.  
 
Contractor shall provide a price per cubic yard and estimated quantities to be installed per top dressing 
(based on his own field measurements) and shall submit with bid for future work. 
 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: B5F65365-3C61-45D6-A9A1-423B05956F61

David Robinson
Cross-Out

David Robinson
Cross-Out

David Robinson
Cross-Out



Map of Keniston entrance from 1st Coast Mulch: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Map of Creston entrance from 1st Coast Mulch: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Map of Devinston entrance from 1st Coast Mulch: 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3. 

















































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

4. 



BrightView Landscape Services 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

August 12, 2024 

Presented By:   

Brad Long

 
 

Villages of Westport 
2024 Landscaping 

RFP  

 



11530 Davis Creek Court 
Jacksonville, FL 32256 
T. 904-292-0716 
www.brightview.com 

 

                      BrightView Landscape Services 
 
 

 
August 12, 2024 

 
Tim Harden, Vesta Property Services 

6702 Sandle Dr. 

Jacksonville, FL 32219 

 
 

RE Villages of Westport 2024 Landscape Maintenance RFP 
 
Dear Tim, 
 
BrightView is pleased to submit a professional landscape proposal for Villages of Westport. Based on 
our history servicing properties similar to Villages of Westport, as well as BrightView's 70-year service 
history, we will focus on being pro-active, providing consistent, high-quality service, maintaining plant 
material health, strong contractor capabilities, fair pricing, and constant, written communication 
between your office, and our local BrightView branch. 

 
The enclosed proposal was developed based on feedback and our experience. Our skilled team will 
continue to achieve your landscape goals and keep your property looking its best. Again, our service 
commitment will include these areas as a high priority: 

 

Priority item #1: Plant Material Health screams "Curb Appeal" to Current and Prospective 
Residents as well as Management. BrightView feels and understands your concern when residents 
and visitors notice the lack of green color in the turf, dead palm fronds, bed weeds and the like. 
Healthy turf is a deep, dark green color signifying proper nutrients, appropriate irrigation and 
fertilization, as well as the care and pride of the community. We also understand the concern for 
following the "Florida Best Management Practices" directives established by the University of Florida. 
Items such as proper fertilization techniques, minimizing grass clippings into retention ponds, proper 
mowing and trimming techniques, and community landscape enhancement plantings. We further 
understand that trees and shrubs are expected to be healthy, upright, vigorous and colorful. To these 
ends, we will use the latest fertilizer formulations, irrigation techniques and Florida Friendly 
maintenance practices to achieve this high-level curb appeal, with details presented later in this 
proposal. 

 

Priority item #2: Communication. Communication between your Property Manager, and 

BrightView will either make or break our contract. All the best intentions and service capabilities 

are useless if we do not communicate clearly with you. Our proposal will refer to specific 

reporting tools such as property management reports, irrigation inspection reports, and site-

specific enhancement ideas. These written reports, along with monthly property walks, will 

demonstrate not only our ability to keep the board informed of our services, but demonstrate our 

care and concern to constantly improve the Villages of Westport landscape investment. 

 

 
 



11530 Davis Creek Court 
Jacksonville, FL 32256 
T. 904-292-0716 
www.brightview.com 

 

                      BrightView Landscape Services 
 
 

Priority item #3: Vendor Capabilities and Pricing. Vendor Capabilities and Pricing together 

reflect the Ultimate Outcome of your Satisfaction. Too few hours on the job means services go 

missed. Inadequate training and service practices result in unsightly "curb appeal". Rest assured, 

BrightView has extensive employee training, initial job assessment techniques, and a "value-

driven" pricing program that results in a quality performance and customer satisfaction level 

second to none in the industry. All of this means our price and our service level is driven by your 

desired outcome for the property. Please note that our pricing that follows will be tied directly to 

your service expectations. As an added bonus, our Digital Design studio is offered to all our 

clients at no additional charge to provide digital renderings of any upcoming landscape project 

you have in mind. 

 

As an experienced partner delivering both local expertise and national resources, we understand 

how a well-maintained landscape attracts people, adds to your property value and contributes to 

your success. When you partner with BrightView, you will have a team of local professionals 

dedicated to the careful stewardship of your landscape and its enduring beauty and value. 

 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal. I will follow up with you in the next few days to 
answer any questions you may have. Feel free to contact me at (904) 891-7333 or by email at 
Brad.Long@brightview.com. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 

Brad Long 
Business Developer 

 

Brad Long 



ption 1 

 

                      BrightView Landscape Services 

 

           Results 
in the First 30 
Days 

Our goal is to show a noticeable difference within the first 30 days on the job. Through our 

onsite inspections, property reviews and conversations with you and your team, together we 

will construct service, communication, and action plans best suited for Villages of Westport 

Listed below are tasks we will fulfill in the first 30 days based on priorities you have already 

identified. 

 

Irrigation 

 
 Perform a thorough inspection of 

the systems and components. 

 Map the system showing 
locations of major components 
and zone coverage. 

 Sample the soil and adjust 
watering schedule for desired 
moisture. 

 Recommend necessary 
repairs and upgrade. 

 Identify water shutoffs in 
event of emergency. 

Shrubs and Beds 

 

 Remove weeds. 

 Prune all shrubs.  

 Eliminate sucker growth and 
volunteer plantings from beds. 

 Apply insect and disease 
control practices to plant 
material. 

 Propose solutions for dead 
plant replacements. 

 

Safety 

 

 Trim plant material blocking 
line of sight to buildings and 
facilities. 

 Identify obstacles in the path of 
motion for production teams. 

 Identify trip hazards created by 
plant or tree growth. 

 Provide proposal to ensure tree 
canopies are above the height 
or vehicles in parking areas. 

 Identify drainage problems and 
propose solutions. 

Communication 

 Introduce Account Manager 
and key staff. 

 Walk site with Property 
Manager and BrightView team. 

 Determine your preferred 
communication methods. 

 Schedule key production 
cycles. 

 Deliver all key contact 
information for the team. 

Turf 

 Apply Broadleaf Weed Control. 

 Develop customized 
fertilization program. 

 Apply blanket coverage of 
chinch bug suppression agent. 

 Apply Pre-emergent weed 
control to inhibit new growth. 

Trees 

 Provide proposal to elevate 
canopies for clearance and 
safety. 

 Repair tree wells as needed. 

 Propose to replace or repair 
improperly installed or 
damaged tree stakes. 

 Provide an extensive plan for 
preserving and maintaining 
legacy trees. 

 

 
 

 
 

 



ption 1 

 

                      BrightView Landscape Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      
 
      Personnel and Experience 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



ption 1 

 

                      BrightView Landscape Services 

Your Team 
 

The crew hand selected to maintain Villages of Westport has the skills and experience 
necessary to meet your specific needs and expectations. Meet your team: 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Tim Harden 

Account Manager 

Irriga ion Supervisor Chemical Applicator 

Digital Design Architect Enhancemen s

Production Manager 

Mowing Crew Irrigation Technician 



ption 1 

 

                      BrightView Landscape Services 
 
 

 

 



ption 1 

 

                      BrightView Landscape Services 
 
 

 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

Consistency in Quality 
Efficiently Delivered 

 
Our goal is to consistently offer the best value in the marketplace by providing unmatched 

service, a customized approach focused on your specific priorities and a well-maintained 

landscape you and the community are proud of – all while meeting your predetermined 

budget parameters. Doing this requires operational excellence. The operational practices 

that allow us to consistently meet our customers’ expectations include: 

 
 The industry’s top talent – When selecting teams for each property, we match the 

specific landscape needs with our most appropriately experienced talent. At BrightView, 

we have a deep pool of talent. We recruit from the top horticultural and landscape 

schools in the country and have an all-encompassing training program that ensures our 

crews perform at their peak year-round. 

 
 State-of-the-art equipment – Our crews operate high quality and well-maintained 

equipment and are trained to use the most effective tool for each task on your property. 

The result – a better end product achieved with greater efficiency and fewer injuries. 

 
 Horticultural excellence – Plant material looks and performs its best when maintained 

properly. Our horticultural experts understand the science of landscape maintenance 

and will ensure the plant material on your property receives the proper care for each 

season and as unexpected circumstances arise. 

 
 Innovation – Lead or follow; we choose to lead. BrightView seeks out and tests the 

latest technology so we can help our customers reduce operating costs, benefit from 

greater efficiencies and have all around healthier and higher performing plant material. 

 
 Systematic operations – We deploy to ensure our crews focus on your priorities and 

important details are not overlooked. Our approach is to design the most effective path 

of motion for the work to be performed, specify the equipment to be used and supply our 

crew with detailed site plans that show their daily, weekly and monthly activities. 

 
 Continuous improvement – We routinely evaluate for safety, quality and effectiveness 

in a persistent effort to be better today than we were yesterday. 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

Preserving the Value 
of Your Asset 

The leader in innovative landscape maintenance solutions, we seek out ways to help our 

customers save money through more efficient and healthier landscapes. Our integrated 

practice allows us to offer our customers additional services that protect the landscape and 

add value to the asset. This provides you with the ease of working with your one trusted 

service provider, BrightView, and frees you up from having to manage multiple third-party 

consultants saving you time and money. Value-added services we offer that could benefit 

your property include: 

 

 Highest percentage of Best Management Practices Certified Personnel in the industry 

 Multiple Certified and Licensed Irrigation Managers 

 24 Hour Emergency Response 

 Licensed Pest Control Services provider 

 Digital Design Studio 

 In-house nationally certified Tree Arborists 
 
 

 

 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 
 

Saving Water Makes Cents 
 

Water is money and every drop counts. Thus, we will water your plant material based on 

actual need, no more, no less. Our water management expertise has helped our customers 

save significant amounts of water, which translates to significant savings. We will start with a 

thorough assessment of your current irrigation system and offer our recommendations for 

better managing your water supply. This includes: 
 

 
 Perform a detailed irrigation evaluation of 

your current system. 

 Calculate potential savings based on past 
water usage and landscape needs. 

 Create a customized water management 

plan that ensures uniform coverage, 

reduced runoff and efficient operation. 

 Assess plant palette and make 
recommendations that can reduce overall 

water consumption. 

 Recommend smart controller options 

appropriate for your property with detailed 

information on pricing, water savings and 

other additional benefits you can expect. 

 Monitor existing and/or new system for 

stuck valves, breaks and other 

inefficiencies to prevent water-use waste 

and damage. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Irrigation management technology 

 
Irrigation analysis 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 

Emergency Response Team 
Ready When You Need Us 

With hundreds of locations, we can dispatch faster than other landscape service providers in 

the event of a catastrophic situation, including but not limited to hurricanes, tornadoes / 

waterspouts, and severe weather. 
 

When a catastrophe occurs, your local Branch Manager, Rodney Hicks, will personally draw 

on resources and pull equipment from within the BrightView network to ensure your property 

is quickly, properly, and safely serviced. 

 
 
 

Resources from branch offices will be available in the event of 

an emergency to ensure our customers have access to crews 

and equipment quickly. 
 
 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 

Your Full-Service Landscape Expert 
BrightView takes pride in providing the highest-quality landscape and snow services with a 

worry-free, dependable service commitment. As the nation’s leading landscape services 

company, we consistently bring excellent landscapes to life at thousands of clients’ 

properties, fostering collaborative relationships to drive clients’ success. 

 
A full-service landscape company, BrightView can mobilize quickly to respond to special 

requests that may fall outside of the scope of landscape maintenance. In addition to 

landscape maintenance, our expertise extends to: 

 
At every stage of your property’s lifecycle, BrightView is here to take care of your landscape. 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

  
 

  

  

 

 

 

    

 

    

 

 

  

   

  

  

 

 

 

  



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 
 
 
 
 

      
 

                          

Specifications and Pricing 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

COMPETITIVE PRICING THAT FITS YOUR BUDGET 
We are committed to fulfilling the specific landscape needs of Villages of Westport 
while providing the service you expect at a price point that fits your budget.  

 
LANDSCAPE MANAGEMENT   

Base Management pricing includes: 

 42 Grounds Maintenance Visits 

 Mowing, Weeding, Edging 

 Blowing Debris 

 Bed Weed Control  

 Shrubs and Groundcover Pruning  
 

Agronomics Management pricing includes: 

 5x Turf Fertilization  

 Turf Insect Control as needed 

 Turf Weed Control as needed 

 2x Shrub and Groundcover Fertilization 

 Shrub and Groundcover Insect Control as needed 
 

Irrigation Inspection pricing includes: 

 Monthly check and adjust all zones 

 Monthly cleaning irrigation heads 

 Monthly Irrigation report 
 
Base Maintenance, Fertilization, and Irrigation Monthly Fee:  $    6,152.00 
Base Maintenance, Fertilization, and Irrigation Fee Total:       $  73,824.00 
 
 
Additional Services as needed: 

Base Management Monthly Price   $      4,374.00 

Base Management Yearly Fee  $   52,488.00 

Fertilizer/Pest Control/Weed Control Monthly Price   $      1,525.00 

Fertilizer/Pest Control/Weed Control Yearly Fee  $    18,300.00 

Irrigation Inspection Service Monthly Price   $        253.00 

Irrigation Inspection Service Yearly Fee  $     3,036.00 

Mulch $ 60 per cu yard 

Palm Tree Pruning $ 55 each tree 

Seasonal Color (Flowers) $ 2.90 / each 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 
 
    

 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 
VCLM Horticulture/Operations Calendar
Palm Coast

Week 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52
Horticulture Activities

1 Turf
2 Mow
6 Ornamental

Shrub cut backs (Azaleas)
9 Tree stake removal On Going all year long

10 Limb ups
16 Ornamental grass shearing
17 Shub prunning

Seasonal Color
20 4 changes
21 Agronomic Program (Turf)
22 24-0-10 with pre m
23 10-0-20 plus Talastar
24 30-0-17 plus Talstar/Arena
25 24-0-11 
26 Bfren for Chinchbug Spot treatments
27 Lontrel /Mansion/Q-silver for turf weeds

Optional turf weed is 24D Amine
32
33 Ornamental Program
34 Fertilization 13-0-13 
35 Insect control as needed
36 Growth Regulator Cutless/Atrimmec
40 Merit Drench Axaleas, Crepes,etc.
41 Pre-emergent (beds)Snapshot/AqaCap
43 Irrigation
45 Summer adjustments

Significantly reduce irrigation

Turf Legend
Ornamental
Seasonal Color
Agronomic Turf
Ornamental Program
Irrigation

O Order material

July August DecemberSeptember October NovemberJuneJanuary February March April May

BrightView Horticultural Calendar 
Jacksonville 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

PRACTICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
FOR CONTRACT  
LANDSCAPE MANAGEMENT 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: 
Contractor shall furnish all horticultural supervision, labor, material, equipment and transportation 
required to maintain the landscape throughout the contract period, as specified herein. 
 
LAWN CARE: 
Mowing and Edging: 
 
Lawns shall be mowed more frequently during the active growing season and as needed during 
other seasons. During extended rainy or dry periods mowing will take place as conditions dictate.  
Mowing height will be based on what is horticultural correct for the turf variety taking into account 
the season. 
Clippings shall not be caught and removed from lawn area unless they are lying in swaths which 
may damage the lawn. 
Edges shall be trimmed to maintain a neat appearance. Outside of focal areas, edging surfaces 
will alternate between hard surfaces and bed lines weekly.  
 
Fertilization: 
Lawns shall be fertilized as warranted with a commercial fertilizer. The number of applications 
will be dependent on the type of nitrogen used and the type of turf grass.  
 
Disease control:  
Disease control is maintained through proper fertilization, mowing and water management. In the 
event that disease problems occur Contractor will use treatments to stop or slow progression of 
disease. This program does not include the prevention of disease with weekly or monthly 
applications of disease control products although such protection is available at substantial 
additional cost. 
 
Insect control:   
Contractor will provide control of turf damaging insects using Federal and State registered insect 
control products as needed to prevent or mitigate turf damage. These treatments do not include 
the prevention of fire ant infestation which is available at added cost. Disease caused by 
infestation of nematodes (microscopic round worms that feed on roots) is not included.  
Currently, there is no effective nematode control product registered for use on landscapes.  
Contractor will recommend additional treatments and procedures to minimize damage should 
nematodes become a problem. These treatments will be provided at additional cost. Nematode 
control is available for some sports turf locations and will be quoted separately if required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 
Weed control:   
Contractor will use proper fertilization, mowing and watering practices to promote the growth of 
weed resistant turf. Additionally, applications of pre and post emergence weed controls will be 
applied at times if warranted to control weeds without damaging desirable turf.  Recent changes 
in Federal regulations have resulted in our loss of ability to selectively control some weeds 
including crabgrass when they are present in St Augustine. The only control of these weeds is to 
treat infested turf with non-selective products such as Roundup. These treatments require the 
resodding which will be quoted at additional charge. 
 
GROUND COVER AREA/SHRUB AREAS: 
Edging: 
Edge ground cover as needed to keep within bounds and away from obstacles. 
 
Pruning: 
Shrubs shall be pruned only as necessary to maintain the natural form of the plant, to maintain 
growth within space limitations, and to eliminate damage or diseased wood.  This excludes 
pruning necessitated by storm damage, disease, neglected overgrowth or winterkill. 
 
Weed Control: 
Keep beds reasonably free of broadleaf or grassy weeds, preferably with pre-emergent and/or 
selective post-emergent/contact herbicides.   
Pre-emerge:  This type of control should be used only if a known weed problem warrants its use. 
Post-emerge:  Control broadleaf weeds with selective herbicides. 
The chosen chemical will be recommended and legally approved for the specific weed problem. 
 
Fertilization: 
Apply fertilizer as warranted.  The number of applications will be dependent on the type of 
nitrogen used and the type of plant material. 
 
Fungicide: 
Apply recommended, legally approved fungicides to control disease-causing damage to 
ornamentals if warranted. 
 
Pesticide: 
Apply recommended, legally approved pesticides to control insects causing damage to     
ornamentals if warranted. 
 
Control of imported pests:   
Certain locations in the United States have a record of accidental introduction of pests from other 
countries. These imported pests can be very damaging and difficult or impossible to control with 
available products. Where such pests become a problem Contractor will recommend the most 
cost-effective alternatives for pest mitigation. Such recommendations may include plant 
replacement or intensified treatment schedules that may require additional cost to the customer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 
TREE CARE: 
 
Pruning: 
Height limitation for tree pruning covered in the specification is 8 feet. On trees over 8 feet in 
height only low-hanging branches that present a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular traffic will be 
raised. Trees under 10 feet are scheduled to be pruned in the winter months except for safety-
related pruning, which will be done only if necessary.  
 
Staking: 
Stakes are to be inspected and adjusted or removed as necessary. When trees attain a trunk 
caliper of 4” or substantial root development stability, removal will be discussed with client. 
 
Palm Pruning: 
Dead or dying fronds should be removed annually. It is best to leave healthy fronds when 
possible and defer to specific pruning methods and finished cuts per palm type. 
 
MULCHED AREA:  
Mulched areas will be inspected on our days of service. Weeds and grasses shall be controlled 
with recommended, legally approved herbicides only if necessary. Mulch beds should be 
replenished with up to 2” of mulch annually. In those areas with excessive mulch build up, 
alternatives will be discussed with the client.  
 
IRRIGATION SYSTEM:  
Watering shall be scheduled with automatic controllers to supply quantities and frequencies 
consistent with seasonal requirements of the plant materials in the landscape.  In some 
circumstances, water scheduling may be limited by local watering restrictions. 
Where practical, watering shall be done at night or early morning if the system is automatic, 
unless notified otherwise by the owner. 
Any damages to the irrigation system caused by the Contractor while carrying out maintenance 
operations shall be repaired without charge.  Where practical, repairs shall be made within one 
watering period. 
Faulty equipment, vandalism or accidental damage caused by others shall be reported promptly 
to owner.  Cost of labor and material to perform repair is an extra and shall be paid for by the 
owner upon authorization. 
Whenever possible, owner’s representative shall be instructed on how to turn off system in case 
of emergency.  Our office is to be advised at once or by next business day. 
If the Contractor is required to make emergency repairs or adjustments on other than regularly 
scheduled visits, a minimum charge of $75.00 emergency calls will apply. 
 
DEBRIS CLEANUP: 
All landscape areas shall be inspected on days of service and excess debris removed. 
Gardening debris, generated from our work, shall be removed from paved areas on days of 
service.  This excludes heavy leaf fall pickup from parking areas, sidewalks, pools, etc. 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      
 
               Certifications 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 

 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 
 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 



 

 
BrightView Landscape Services 

 
 
Our Eye 
Is Always on 
Quality and 
Continuous Improvement 

 
Our team management will review your property periodically to ensure our crew is meeting 

quality standards and your expectations. This internal review process is an important 

element of our quality assurance and continuous improvement programs. The crew takes 

these reports very seriously as they impact their compensation. 

 

  

 

 
 

Your Complete Satisfaction is Our #1 Goal 
 

We judge our success by the complete satisfaction of our customers. Every member of your 

landscape team will strive to earn your trust and loyalty through a proactive relationship in 

which we consistently perform work of the highest quality with unmatched responsiveness. 

To meet this goal, we continually collect feedback through a comprehensive customer 

satisfaction program. We use the valuable insight gained through our survey program to 

determine system improvements and guide the content of our employee training program. 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 











 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



Landscape Maintenance Services Proposal

prepared for

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT CDD -
ADDENDUM AUGUST 2024

Timothy Harden

Vesta Property Services

Not yet submitted



1

SERVICE MAP
The image below depicts the boundaries of the
serviceable areas of your landscape as understood for
the purposes of developing this proposal.

Landscape Maintenance Services Proposal



2Landscape Maintenance Services Proposal

YOUR INVESTMENT

CORE MAINTENANCE SERVICES PRICE

All Services Matching Current Scope $22,020

ANNUAL GRAND TOTAL $22,020

ANNUAL GRAND TOTAL $22,020.00

MONTHLY GRAND TOTAL $1,835.00



3Landscape Maintenance Services Proposal

CLIENT NAME: Vesta Property Services

PROPERTY CONTACT: Timothy Harden

PROPERTY CONTACT EMAIL: tharden@vestapropertyservices.com

CONTRACT EFFECTIVE DATE: 9/1/2024

CONTRACT EXPIRATION DATE: 8/30/2025

INITIAL TERM: One Year

PROPERTY NAME: Villages of Westport CDD - Addendum August 2024

CONTRACTOR: Yellowstone Landscape, PO Box 849, Bunnell, FL 32110

YELLOWSTONE CONTACT: Business Development Manager

YELLOWSTONE CONTACT EMAIL: bpoor@yellowstonelandscape.com

YELLOWSTONE CONTACT PHONE: 9047607860

YELLOWSTONE SCOPE OF SERVICES: The Client agrees to engage Yellowstone Landscape to
provide the services and work as described.

PR
O

JE
CT

 D
ET

A
IL

S



4Landscape Maintenance Services Proposal

AGREEMENT

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE:

The Client agrees to pay Yellowstone Landscape $22,020.00 annually, in equal monthly installments billed in the
amount of $1,835.00 upon receipt of invoice.

Charges will increase at the commencement of each additional automatic twelve (12) month renewal term per the
Agreement Renewal section on the following page of this agreement. The TERMS AND CONDITIONS following
and the EXHIBITS attached hereto constitute part of this agreement.

Presented by: Yellowstone Landscape

Printed Name: Christopher Adornetti, Officer
Date: Not yet accepted

Accepted by:

Printed Name: Timothy Harden
Date:



TERMS & CONDITIONS

Entire Agreement: This Landscape Management Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous negotiations, promises, understandings, commitments, proposals, or agreements, whether oral or written on the subject matter
addressed herein. This Agreement may only be modified or amended by a writing signed by authorized representatives of both Parties.

Acceptance of Agreement: The Agreement constitutes Yellowstone Landscape (hereafter referred to as “Yellowstone”) offer to Client and shall
become a binding contract upon acceptance by Client’s signature on this Agreement and/or instruction to perform the Services by Client’s authorized
representative. The Parties agree that the provisions of the Agreement shall control and govern over any contract terms and/or Purchase Orders
generated by Client and that such documentation may be issued by Client to, and accepted by, Yellowstone without altering the terms hereof.

Price, Quality, and Working Conditions: The amounts in the “Compensation Schedule” include all labor, materials, insurance, equipment, and
supervision for the performance of the specified Services in the attached exhibits. All materials supplied as part of this agreement are guaranteed to
be as specified and all work shall be completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard landscape maintenance practices (“Warranty”).
Unless otherwise stated in writing Yellowstone shall have the right to rely on the contents of all documents provided by Client and/or its agents,
including Plans, Specifications, and test results, without independent verification and analysis by Yellowstone. Client agrees that Yellowstone is not an
insurer or guarantor of the appropriateness of any landscape design provided by others, or of the long term viability of plant material utilized within
that specified landscape design or of the site constraints (including watering restrictions) under which Yellowstone is required to perform its Services.

Assignment: Neither Client nor Yellowstone may assign this Agreement or transfer any right, interest, obligation, claim, or relief under this Agreement
without the prior written consent of the other party. Client acknowledges that Yellowstone may subcontract portions of the Work to specialty
subcontractors.

Relationship of Parties: The legal relationship of Yellowstone to Client with respect to the Services shall be that of an independent contractor, not an
agent or employee. Yellowstone is responsible for its own withholding taxes, social security taxes, unemployment taxes, licenses, and insurance
pertaining to its employees or operations. If applicable, Yellowstone agrees to pay all sales taxes on materials supplied.

Agreement Renewal: Unless Client notifies Yellowstone regarding its intent to terminate Services prior to expiration of the “Initial Term”, this
Agreement will renew automatically for an additional twelve (12) month term and will continue to renew at the end of each successive twelve (12)
month unless canceled by either party in accordance with the “Termination” provision or by either party with written notice of not less than 30 days
prior to the end of the “Initial Term” or any automatic term(s). Charges will increase by 3.0% at the commencement of each additional automatic
twelve (12) month renewal term.

Payment Terms: Billing for Services occurs in advance at the first of each month in accordance with the “Compensation Schedule” on the preceding
page of this agreement. Payment for Service(s) is due upon receipt of monthly invoices. The Parties contractually agree that interest on all past due
amounts shall accrue at the maximum allowable rate provided by law per month, beginning on the first day following the month in which the invoice
was received. This Agreement constitutes a contract of indebtedness. Our preferred payment method is ACH transfer. If Client chooses to pay by
check or money order, payments should be mailed to the address indicated on the invoice.

Termination for Cause: If Yellowstone fails to fully perform its obligations and fails to cure any such default within 30 days after receipt of written
notice specifying the acts or omissions, Client shall have the right to terminate this Agreement. In the event of a “Termination for Cause”, Client shall
notify Yellowstone of the termination date in writing and pay Yellowstone for all Services performed to the effective date of termination.

Default: In the event that Client breaches its obligations under this Agreement to permit and cooperate with Yellowstone’s performance of its duties
or Client fails to make payment for any Services within 30 days of receipt of Yellowstone’s invoice, Yellowstone may, but shall not be obligated to,
suspend Services until the breach is cured and/or until all arrearages have been paid in full. This Agreement will terminate automatically and without
notice upon the insolvency of, or upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition by or against Client.

Claims: Yellowstone’s responsibility with regard to Services not meeting the “Warranty” shall be limited, at the sole choice of Yellowstone, to the re-
performance of those defective Services and replacement of those defective materials without charge during the ninety (90) day period following
completion of the defective Services or provision of defective materials, or a credit to Client’s account of the compensation paid by Client for the
portion of such Services determined to be defective. If the attached exhibit(s) expressly provide for a longer “Warranty” period, that “Warranty”
period shall apply. The Parties shall endeavor in good faith to resolve any such Claim within 30 days, failing which all claims, counterclaims, disputes,
and other matters in question between Client and Yellowstone arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof may be decided by
the dispute resolution process identified below. Each Party will bear its own costs, including attorneys’ fees; however, the prevailing party shall have
the right to collect reasonable costs and attorneys fees for enforcing this agreement as allowable by applicable law.

Jurisdiction: By entering into this Agreement and unless otherwise agreed the parties agree that the courts of the State of Florida, or the courts of
the United States located in the Middle District of the State of Florida, shall have the sole and exclusive jurisdiction to entertain any action between
the parties hereto and the parties hereto waive any and all objections to venue being in the state courts located in Flagler County (and agree that the
sole venue for such challenges shall be Flagler County) or the Middle District of Florida, if federal jurisdiction is appropriate. Should the parties not
agree on the State of Florida as the appropriate jurisdiction for legal challenges, the parties agree the state in which the job site is located will be
designated as the appropriate legal jurisdiction for all legal disputes and challenges to the contract or the work related thereto.

5Landscape Maintenance Services Proposal



Insurance: Yellowstone shall secure and maintain, throughout the performance of Services under this Agreement, General Liability, Employers
Liability, Auto Liability & Umbrella Liability coverage, as specified herein:

a. Worker’s Compensation Insurance with statutory limits;

b. Employer’s Liability Insurance with limits of not less than $1,000,000;

c. Commercial General Liability Insurance with combined single limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 annual
aggregate;

d. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance, including owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles, with combined single limits of not less than
$1,000,000.

e. Umbrella Coverage $10,000,000 per occurrence/$10,000,000 annual aggregate

If required in writing by Client, Yellowstone shall furnish Certificates of Insurance verifying such insurance and Yellowstone agrees to provide written
notice to Client at least thirty (30) days prior to any cancellation, non-renewal, or material modification of the policies. When requested by Client, the
original insurance policies required of Yellowstone will be made available for review.

Licenses: Yellowstone shall maintain all applicable licenses and permits within the cities, counties, and states of operation.

Indemnification for Third Party Claims: Yellowstone agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Client from and against any and all claims,
losses, liabilities, judgments, costs and expenses, and damages and injuries to third parties (“Claims”) arising out of or caused by the negligent act,
error, omission or intentional wrongdoing of Yellowstone, its subcontractors or their respective agents, employees or representatives which arise from
the performance of the Services or otherwise while present on the Property for the purpose of rendering Services pursuant to this Agreement. Client
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Yellowstone against any Claims based in whole or in part by the conduct or actions of Client. The indemnity
rights and obligations identified in this Agreement shall be and are the only indemnity rights and obligations between the Parties, in law or equity,
arising out of or related to Yellowstone’s Services under this Agreement or any claims asserted in relation thereto.

Limitation of Liability: Except for the indemnification provision applicable to claims by third parties against Client, Yellowstone’s total and cumulative
liability to Client for any and all claims, losses, costs, expenses and damages, whether in contract, tort or any other theory of recovery, shall in no
event exceed the amount Client has paid to Yellowstone for Services under this Agreement during the calendar year in which the claim first occurred.
In no event shall Yellowstone be liable for incidental, consequential, special or punitive damages. Yellowstone shall not be responsible for any damage

to structures, including, but not limited to, foundations, fences, siding, light poles, decks, signage, air conditioning units, lamp posts, curbs, or similar
structures that do not have a minimum buffer of mulch, planting bed space, or other barren or unmaintained area of sufficient size to offer protection
to such structures from damage from mowers, weed-trimming lines, or other maintenance equipment (if not otherwise specified and agreed, a
minimum of 8 inches). Likewise, Yellowstone will not be responsible for any damage to any cables, wires, irrigation components, or similar items not
buried to specification in the event they are damaged during the performance of the Services.

Indirect Damages: Neither Party shall be responsible to the other or to any third party for any economic, consequential, incidental, or punitive
damages (including but not limited to loss of use, income, profits, financing, or loss of reputation) arising out of or relating to this Service Agreement
or the performance of the Services.

Excusable Delays and Risk of Loss: Yellowstone shall not be in breach of this Agreement nor liable for damages due to (i) delays, (ii) failure to
perform any obligation under this Agreement, or (iii) losses caused or attributable, in whole or in part, to circumstances beyond its reasonable control,
including but not limited to: drought conditions, acts of God, governmental restrictions or requirements, severe or unusual weather, natural
catastrophes, vandalism or acts of third persons. Client assumes the full risk of loss attributable to all such occurrences, including but not limited to,
the repair or replacement of landscaping and payment to Yellowstone of all amounts provided in this Agreement, notwithstanding that Yellowstone
may not have been able to provide all or any of its Services during such occurrences or until the premises described under this Agreement has been
restored to its pre-occurrence condition.

Watering Restrictions and Drought Conditions: Should the Property be located in an area which is or becomes subject to governmental restrictions
on water usage and/or watering times applicable to the Services Yellowstone will comply with such governmental restrictions which may then impact
the performance, viability, and/or looks of plant materials and, as such, shall be deemed circumstances beyond its reasonable control.

Warranty: Yellowstone's warranties shall not be in effect in the event of misuse, abuse or negligence by Client or any party affiliated with same.
Additionally, Yellowstone's warranties shall not be in effect in the event of freeze, flood, fire and/or any other acts of God.

6Landscape Maintenance Services Proposal



Nonwaiver: No delay or omission by Yellowstone in exercising any right under this Agreement, and no partial exercise of any right under this
Agreement, shall operate as a waiver of such right or of any other right under this Agreement as provided for by law or equity. No purported waiver
of any right shall be effective unless in writing signed by an authorized representative of Yellowstone and no waiver on one occasion shall be
construed as a bar to or waiver of any such right on any other occasion. All rights of Yellowstone under this Agreement, at law or in equity, are
cumulative and the exercise of one shall not be construed as a bar to or waiver of any other.

Construction: The rule of adverse construction shall not apply. No provision of this Agreement is to be interpreted for or against any Party because
that Party or that Party’s legal representative drafted the provision. In the event any provision of the Agreement is deemed invalid or unenforceable,
the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect, and the invalid or unenforceable provision shall be interpreted and enforced as closely
as possible to the intent of the Parties as expressed herein.

Change in Law: This Agreement is based on the laws and regulations existing at the date of execution. In the event that a governmental authority
enacts laws or modifies regulations in a manner that increases Yellowstone’s costs associated with providing the services under this Agreement,
Yellowstone reserves the right to notify Client in writing of such material cost increase and to adjust pricing accordingly as of the effective date of
such cost increase. Yellowstone must submit clear documentation supporting the cost increase and can only increase pricing to the extent of actual
costs incurred.

7Landscape Maintenance Services Proposal



YELLOWSTONELANDSCAPE.COM

THANK YOU FOR YOUR TRUST
We look forward to working with you!



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



W. O. #

NAME

ADDRESS

DATE     PG      OF   

# CLUBHOUSE/AMMENITY AREA EACH    EXTNSN

4 18.50$       

10 2.50$          

25.00$       

9 2.50$          

 

60 22.50$       

PARTS TOTAL

Please stamp here DESCRIPTION      HOURS     RATE           TOTAL

   LABOR & RENTAL TOTAL

Approved

Not Approved

PROPOSED WORK

 LABOR & RENTAL

          TOTAL

CLIENTTECHNICIAN   SCOTT

NEED TIME TO ADD HEAD AND CHANGE NOZZLES TO ZONE#2 TO ELIMINATE DRIP PIPING

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT

6/7/2024

PROPOSAL 

RAINBIRD 1812 SPRAY HEADS/NOZZLES

AROUND POOL AREA.

RAINBIRD 1806 SPRAY HEADS/NOZZLES

RAINBIRD NOZZLES

ASST FITTINGS AND PIPE(X4)

CHANGE NOZZLES ZONE#1 FOR ADEQUATE COVERAGE ON TURF TO ELIMINATE DRIP 

1,350.00$    

ASST FITTINGS AND PIPE

-$               

-$               

-$               

74.00$          

25.00$          

100.00$        

-$               

-$               

AROUND POOL AREA

RAINBIRD NOZZLES

NEED TIME TO LOCATE ZONES 16,17 TO SWITCH/RE-PIPE DRIP ZONES TO SPRAY ZONES 

 AROUND POOL AREA/CLUBHOUSE.ALL THIS WORK WILL NEED TO BE HAND DUG

-$               

-$               

-$               

-$               

22.50$          

-$               

-$               

-$               

750.00$        

Comments: 

-$               

2,321.50$    

tech 120 11,160.00$  

DATE PROPOSED   6-7-24

$93.00

2,321.50$    

11,160.00$  

MATERIALS

13,481.50$  

11,160.00$  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3. 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  





Covered Party Villages of Westport Community Development District 

Coverage Period: 10/1/2024 - 10/1/2025

1 What is the number of Acres within District boundaries? 812

2 What is the current number of Housing Units (Single Family, Townhomes, Condo) within the District? 245

3 What is the anticipated total number of Housing Units upon completion? 1316

4 Do you require all contractors & vendors (Including Amenity Management Services) with whom you do business to provide a contractual hold harmless

and certificate of insurance with additional insured status?

1
NO

2 NO

3 YES

4
YES

1 Number of Employees (Full Time and Part Time, Other than Board Members) 0

2
NO

3

NO

Cyber Liability Questions

1 Are firewalls and automatically updating antivirus software in force across your network? Yes

2 Is all sensitive and confidential information stored on your databases, servers and data files encrypted? No

3 No

Supplemental Cyber Liability Questions - Required if District has Employees

1 Are all users required to complete security training on an annual basis? Yes

2 Does the district use authentication measures for incoming emails? Yes

3 Yes

4 Yes

1 Are Motor Vehicle Records (MVR) pulled for employees that drive District owned vehicles?

2 If Yes, how often are MVRs  pulled and updated? 

At Hire

Annually

Post Accident

Over the last 6 years has any person, employee, former employee, or job applicant made a Claim alleging unfair or improper treatment regarding employee hiring, 

remuneration, advancement, treatment or termination of employment? (i.e.  Racial Discrimination, Other Ethnic Discrimination, Fair Labor Standards Act Violation, 

Age/ Gender/ Religious Discrimination, American Disabilities)

Auto Liability Exposure Questions  - Required if District Owns Autos 

Does the District have a disability accessibility statement posted on the homepage of your website?

Has the District adopted and implemented a website accessibility policy consistent with Web Content Accessibility Guidelines ("WCAG") 2.0 Level A and AA or 

newer?

Does the district collect, store, or handle more than 250,000 unique Personally Identifiable Information (PII) records?

Is multi-factor authentication required for access to user accounts?

Are system back-ups done monthly and stored on a separate device or service which cannot be accessed from your network?

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Community Development District Supplemental Questions

Does the district have an employee handbook and require employees to acknowledge receipt of the handbook?

Employment Practices Liability Questions - Required if District has Employees Beyond Board Members 

Does any official or employee have any knowledge of any pending claims and/or any circumstance or situation which might reasonably be expected to give rise to a 

claim against them or against the entity?

Public Officials Liability Exposure Questions

Are there any plans to initiate civil action against others on behalf of the entity?

  2



Covered Party Villages of Westport Community Development District 

Coverage Period: 10/1/2024 - 10/1/2025

1 Does the District Own and Maintain any Boilers No

A boiler is a closed vessel or arrangement of enclosed tubes in which water is heated to supply steam to drive an engine or turbine or provide heat.

Property

District Supplemental Questions

  3



This is an informational section to help complete the section that follows

CONSTRUCTION TYPES

□ Frame – Exterior walls are wood or other combustible materials, including construction where combustible materials

are combined with other materials, such as brick veneer, stone veneer, wood iron-clad, stucco on wood

□ Joisted Masonry – Exterior walls are constructed of masonry materials, such as adobe, brick, concrete, gypsum block,

hollow concrete block, stone, tile or similar materials, and where the floors and roof are combustible

□ Non-Combustible – Exterior walls, floors and roof are constructed of and supported by metal, asbestos, gypsum

or other non-combustible materials

□ Masonry Non-Combustible – Exterior walls are constructed of masonry materials as described in Joint Masonry with

the floors and roof of metal or other non-combustible materials.

□ Modified Fire Resistive  – Exterior walls, floors and roof are constructed of masonry or fire resistive material with a

fire resistance rating of one hour or more, but less than two hours.
□ Fire Resistive – Exterior walls, floors and roof constructed of masonry or fire resistive materials having a fire resistance

rating of not less than two hours.
□ Modular Classrooms/Offices - Anchored Manufactured Building

□ Bridges – Structure usually spanning over a body of water

□ On-Ground Liquid Storage Tank  – Above ground storage tanks located on the ground surface that are designed to

hold liquids

□ Elevated Liquid Storage Tank  – Storage tanks located above the ground surface that are designed to hold liquids

□ Below Ground Liquid Storage Tank/  Pool - Water retention tank or swimming pool

□ Pipelines at Grade – Pipelines located at the surface of the ground

□ Electrical Transmission Tower  – Steel towers designed to hold up electrical transmission lines

□ Observation Tower – Elevated towers designed for people to look out of, such as airport control or fire observation

towers

□ Electrical Equipment – Non-high tech electrical equipment other than electrical equipment included as part of the

function of the building

□ Mechanical Equipment – All equipment not otherwise classified in a building

□ Pump/Lift Station  – Pumping stations with mechanical devices that are typically used when a fluid material must be

raised from

□ Waterfront Structures  - Wharves or docks built next to the shore of navigable waters

Roof Design:

Gable Cross Gable Simple Hip Cross Hip



           Complex Roof Design (mixture of several different roof designs)

Gambrel Mansard Salt Box Pyramid Hip



Roof  Covering:

□ Elastomeric – (utilized on flat or low slope roofs)

□ Metal Panel (utilized on flat or low slope roofs)

□ Fiberglass Panel (utilized on flat or low slope roofs)

□ Built-up Composite (utilized on flat or low slope roofs)

□ Tar and gravel system (utilized on flat roofs)

        □ Asphalt Shingles

□ Clay/Concrete Tiles

□ Slate

□ Wood Shakes/Shingles

Low ( < 10” )

Medium ( 10” to 30” )

High ( > 30” )

Roof Pitch /Angle % (estimate is determined by how much roof height 

rises in inches per pitch/angle per one foot run of pitch/angle):

Flat

Pitch / Angle %

12” Run



Shed



PROPERTY SCHEDULE

Unit 

Number

DESCRIPTION

OF OCCUPANCY (If Vacant, state "Vacant" if Under Construction, 

state "Under Construction," If Historic Bldg state "Historic") ADDRESS Line 1

Address 

Line 2 City State Zip County

Year 

Built

Square 

Feet

# of 

Stories

Flood 

Zone

 Building 

Replacement 

Value 

 Contents 

Replacement 

Value Construction Type

Protection 

Class

1 Amenity Center incl. fitness, bathrooms and covered patio 6714 Sandle Dr. 0 Jacksonville FL 32210 Duval 2012 1050 0 X 280,469$        28,840$        Masonry Non -Combustible3

2 Pool including pool furniture 6714 Sandle Dr. 0 Jacksonville FL 32210 Duval 2012 2430 0 X 256,470$        28,840$        Under Ground Liquid Storage/Pool3

3 Playground 6714 Sandle Dr. 0 Jacksonville FL 32210 Duval 2012 0 0 X 21,630$                            Non-Combustible 3

4 Picnic Table & miscellaneous 6714 Sandle Dr. 0 Jacksonville FL 32210 Duval 2012 0 0 X 56,650$                            Non-Combustible 3

5 Monuments (2) at South end of the Villages of Westport Braddock Rd Jacksonville FL 32210 Duval 45,000$          Non-Combustible 3

6 Signs @ 3 Entrances Kenistion and Devinston Jacksonville FL 32210 Duval 42,000$          Non-Combustible 3

7 Block Wall Section #1 – 250 ft long 12463 Cadley Cir Jacksonville FL 32210 Duval 10,000$          Non-Combustible 3

8 Block Wall Section #2 – 250 ft long 12570 Dewhurst Cir Jacksonville FL 32210 Duval 10,000$          Non-Combustible 3

9 Block Wall Section #3 – 800 ft long 6700 Rasper Ct Jacksonville FL 32210 Duval 10,000$          Non-Combustible 3

10 Block Wall Section #4 – 800 ft long 12318 Dewhurst Cir Jacksonville FL 32210 Duval 10,000$          Non-Combustible 3

11 Block Wall Section #5 – 365 ft long 6704 Hanford St Jacksonville FL 32210 Duval 10,000$          Non-Combustible 3

12 Block Wall Section #6 – 450 ft long 12453 Glimmer Way Jacksonville FL 32210 Duval 10,000$          Non-Combustible 3

                                      

                                      

762,219$       57,680$        

                                                

                                                

                                                

                                                

                                                

                                                

                                                

                                                

                                                



Item 

# Description Serial Number  Value Classification Inland Marine Classification

1 Security Equipment 0 10,000$             Electronic Data Processing EquipmentElectronic Data Processing Equipment

2 Mobile Equipment

3 Emergency Services Portable Equipment

4 Fine Arts

5 Rented, Borrowed, Leased Equipment

6 Valuable Papers

7 Other Inland Marine

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30



Version 1:  3/23/07

AUTOMOBILE SCHEDULE

Unit # Department Full VIN Make Model and Description

 Actual Cash 

Value Year Built Vehicle Type

Passenger 

Count

Gross Vehicle 

Weight

Comp 

Deductible

Coll 

Deductible



Workers Compensation Claims Point-of-Contact

Class Code Description

Estimated 

Payroll

Number 

of Emp Rate

Estimated 

Premium

-$                  

-$                  

-$                  

-$                  

-$                  

-$                  

-$                  

-$                  

-$                  

-$                  

-$                  

-$                  

-$                  

-$                  

Total Manual Premium -$                  

Increased ELL 120.00$            

Subtotal 120.00$            

Workplace Safety Credit 2% (Insert Y if applicable) -$                  

Drug Free Workplace Credit 5% (Insert Y if applicable) -$                  

Experience Mod 1

Standard Premium 120.00$            

Premium Discount -$                  

Expense Constant 160.00$            

Terrorism -$                  

Annual 280.00$            



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



Villages of Westport CDD 

Villages of Westport CDD  
CDD District Management Company: 
Governmental Management Services, LLC 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
Phone: (904) 940-5850  
 
District Manager: Darrin Mossing 
District Manager Email: dmossing@gmstnn.com 
 
Any questions or issues you have concerning the CDD can be directed to Darrin, and he will be able to assist. 
 
Villages of Westport CDD is responsible for maintaining the community landscaping, lakes, entrances, playgrounds 
and operations of the Amenity Center.  
 
The CDD Board of Supervisors consists of 5 members:  
 
Chairman: Yashekia Scarlett (shekiaamp@yahoo.com)  
Vice Chairman: Anina Guyton (guyton_nina@yahoo.com)  
Assistant Secretary: Alice Sanford (academyofdreams@yahoo.com)  
Assistant Secretary: Godfrey Story (gstoryCDDbusiness@yahoo.com) 
Assistant Secretary: Carl Hawkins (carl_hawkins77@yahoo.com)  
 
Board members discuss and vote on matters arising involving the CDD and at the Amenity Center. Board members 
are not allowed to discuss CDD matters with each other outside of the Board meetings due to the Florida Sunshine 
Laws. However, residents can reach out to board members individually to discuss any CDD matter. 
 
CDD Fees: CDD fees are paid annually and are included in your property taxes on your annual tax bill. The CDD fees 
are in 2 parts: - 
 

1) Bond Repayment – This is a fixed annual payment based on your frontage. This is repaying the loan/bond 
that was issued to build the infrastructure of the development and the amenity center. You can pay that off 
in a lump sum if you wish to reduce your annual CDD fee. Contact Darrin Mossing for more details. 

2) O&M fee (Operations and Maintenance) – This fee covers the cost of maintaining the community i.e., 
landscaping, lake maintenance, entrances, irrigation, and the running costs of the amenity center. This is 
budgeted yearly and can increase if costs exceed budgets. 

Amenity Center     
Address: 6702 Sandle Drive, Jacksonville, FL 32219 
Website: https://villagesofwestportcdd.com  
Amenity Email: vowpmanager@gmsnf.com  
Amenity Center Hours of Operation: Daily 6am – 8pm 
Pool Hours: Sunrise – Sunset  
 

• Please review the Amenity Center Policies before using the facility. These policies can be accessed at 
http://www.villagesofwestportcdd.com/ 

 



• Access cards to enter the Amenity Center cost $10 for the initial card, $30 to replace a damaged card, $50 
to replace a stolen or lost card  

• An Access Card Form is included with this welcome letter, we ask all new residents to please complete 
the form and email it back to us at vowpmanager@gmsnf.com  

• CDD updates and announcements will be email blasted out to residents. By completing the access card form 
and returning it to us, residents will automatically be added to the email blast list. If you are not receiving 
emails and wish to, please reach out to vowpmanager@gmsnf.com  

 

Villages of Westport CDD  
CDD Field Operations Management Company: 
Vesta Property Services 
200 Business Park Circle, Suite 101 
St. Augustine, FL 32095 
 
Field Operations Manager: Tim Harden 
Field Operations Manager Email: tharden@vestapropertyservices.com  
 
The Field Operations Manager oversees the CDD landscaping, lake, janitorial, pool maintenance and facility 
maintenance contracts.  

Villages of Westport HOA 
HOA Management Company:  
Vesta Property Services 
200 Business Park Circle, Suite 101 
St. Augustine, FL 32095 
 
HOA Manager: Aubrey Synan 
HOA Manager Email: asynan@vestapropertyservices.com 
HOA Manager Phone: 904-747-0181 
 
The HOA handles any issues or upgrades that involve your home and the property your home is located on. In 
addition to these duties. Please reach out to Aubrey with any questions or concerns.  
 

Additional Community Information: 
Schools: Dinsmore Elementary School, Highlands Middle School, Jean Ribault High School  
Utility Provider: JEA  
Cable Providers: Comcast & AT&T 
Jacksonville City Services: My Jax 
Phone: 904-630-CITY 
Website:  https://myjax.custhelp.com/ 
Duval County Property Appraiser: 
Address: 231 E. Forsyth St# 260, Jacksonville, FL 32202 
Phone: 904-255-5900 
Website: https://www.jacksonville.gov/departments/property-appraiser.aspx  
Homestead Application Link: https://homestead.coj.net/WebForm1.aspx  
Supervisor of Elections: 
Address: 105 E Monroe St., Jacksonville, FL 32202 
Phone: 904-630-1414 



Update Voter Registration: https://www.duvalelections.com/Voter-Information/Update-Voter-Information#register  
City Council: Reggie Gaffney, Jr, District 8 
Address: Office of City Council 117 W. Duval St., Suite 425 Jacksonville, FL 32202 
Phone: 904-255-5208 
Email: Rgaffneyjr@coj.net  
Website: https://www.jacksonville.gov/city-council/city-council-members/d08  
 
 
  
 



Villages of Westport Community Development District 
Resident User Information Form 

NOTE TO STAFF: This form may contain confidential information. Please do not disclose its contents 
without first consulting the District Manager. 
 

PRIVACY NOTICE: Under Florida’s Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the information 
you submit on this form may become part of a public record. This means that, if a citizen makes a public 
records request, we may be required to disclose the information you submit to us. Under certain 
circumstances, we may only be required to disclose part of the information submitted to us. If you believe 
that your records may qualify for an exemption under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, please notify the 
District Manager and complete the Address/Identification Confidentiality Request from Public Records 
Disclosure Form. 

PRIMARY PATRON INFORMATION (family members to be added to reverse side) 

Last Name   First Name  

Address                   
     Street Address Apartment/Unit # 

TENANT INFORMATION (IF APPLICABLE)* 

Begin Lease Date  End Lease Date  

Owner Last Name   Owner First Name  

Owner Address                   
 Street Address 

*Tenant shall provide a copy of their release and Owner shall submit a Amenity Right  release form 
 

EMERGENCY NOTIFICATION INFORMATION 

Home Phone 
Number   

Cell Phone Number   Name  

Cell Phone Number   Name  

Email Address(es)                   
Please select all that apply: 

r I would like to receive e-mails on District programs and events.  (Do not check this option if you want 
the information in this section to be used only for emergency purposes.) 

r I would like to receive text messages on District programs and events.  (Do not check this option if you 
want the information in this section to be used only for emergency purposes.) 
r Only contact me in case of emergency. 

PRIVACY NOTICE: If you indicate that we should only use the Optional/Emergency Notification 
Information in case of emergency, then, pursuant to Section 119.071, Florida Statutes the 
Optional/Emergency Notification Information (which consists of the information in this section) may 
be exempt from disclosures we make as the result of a public records request. 

SPECIAL NEEDS 

Does anyone in your family have special needs you would like us to be aware of?  r YES  r NO 
If you answered yes, please provide specific information below in the blank space: 

 



Villages of Westport Community Development District 
Resident User Information Form 

HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS (Must Reside in Same House) 
 

Name (Last, First) Cell Phone Email Address District Resident* 

1.     

2.     

Name(s) of Children Age Birthdate  

3.     

4.     

5.     

6.     

7.     

8.     

*Non-Residents must complete the Non-Resident User Agreement and pay Annual User Fee. 
**In the event that one of the access cards is lost, you will be responsible for paying $50.00 for each 
replacement card. In the event that one of the cards is damaged, the fee to replace the card is $30.  

  _______________ 
 Please initial  

PLEASE READ AND SIGN BELOW: 
The undersigned agrees and acknowledges that the above information is true and correct.  It is understood that 
Resident Cards and Guest Passes are the property of the ___________________________ Development District 
(“District”) and are non-transferable, in accordance with the District’s rules, policies and/or regulations.  In 
consideration for the admittance of the above listed persons and their guests to utilize District property and 
District facilities, including without limitation the _____________________  and all other real property owned 
and operated by the District (together, the Facilities), the undersigned on behalf of himself and/or herself and 
each of their minor children, heirs and successors, hereby agrees to hold harmless and release the District, its 
staff, supervisors, agents, officers and employees, from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by 
any person, corporation or other entity for injuries, death, property damage or of any nature, arising out of, or in 
connection with use of the Facilities, including litigation or any appellate proceedings with respect thereto, except 
to the extent caused by the gross or intentional negligence of the District. Furthermore, Patron understands that 
the District and its staff, supervisors, agents, officers and employees assume no responsibility for injuries or illness 
that Patron(s), or his or her minor children, may sustain as a result of individual physical condition or resulting 
from such person(s) participation in any activities, sports, use of pool, use of tennis or basketball court(s), use of 
playground, use of dog park, or other activities on District owned property.  Patron expressly acknowledges on 
behalf of him/her self and his or her minor children, heirs and successors that he/she assume the risk for any and 
all injuries and illness that may result from participation in these activities.  Patron hereby releases and 
discharges the District and its staff, supervisors, agents, officers and employees as a result of Patron(s), or his or 
her minor children’s, participation in these activities.  Patron further understands that the District is not 
responsible for personal property lost or stolen while at the Facilities. By signing below, Patron(s) acknowledge 
he/she has received the District rules and policies and shall abide by the same. Nothing herein shall be construed 
as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or limits of liability beyond any statutory limited waiver of 
immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes or other statute.  
Print Name:                                      
Signature:                                                                    
Date:____________________________    DISTRICT Employee Initials__________ 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



Constant Contact Survey Results

Campaign Name: VOWP Fitness Center Survey 2024/07/16, 5:28:27 PM EDT 
Survey Starts: 128

Survey Submits: 65

Export Date: 08/12/2024 07:30 PM

MULTIPLE CHOICE

How often do you exercise at Fitness Center?

Answer Choice 0% 100%
Number of

Responses
Responses

Ratio

Never 37 56%

Periodically 20 30%

Often 8 12%

Total Responses 65 100%

MULTIPLE CHOICE

Would you use the Fitness Center more if it was expanded and/or if new equipment was purchased?

Answer Choice 0% 100%
Number of

Responses
Responses

Ratio

Yes 50 76%

No 4 6%

Maybe 11 16%

Total Responses 65 100%

MULTIPLE CHOICE

Preferred Fitness Center Equipment?

Answer Choice 0% 100%
Number of

Responses
Responses

Ratio

Stationary Bike 4 6%

Ellipitical Machine 15 23%

Weight Machine 17 26%

Treadmill 14 21%

No Preference 7 10%

Other 8 12%

Total Responses 65 100%

Page 1 of 1



responses

First Name Last Name Email Address Respondent # Date/Time 3. Preferred Fitness Center Equipment?

Anonymous 1 07/17/2024 09:25:31 PM EDT Other: Stairmaster

Anonymous 2 07/23/2024 11:11:39 AM EDT Other: All of the above.

Anonymous 3 07/29/2024 10:44:52 AM EDT Other: All of the above, the current equipment is broken. We should have more options and updated equipment.

Jamell Warfield jamell.warfield@yahoo.com 4 08/02/2024 05:14:30 PM EDT Other: all types of fitnese center equipment not just one option. a great fitness center has optiions and space.

Anonymous 5 07/30/2024 04:23:19 PM EDT Other: Weights and rower

Anonymous 6 07/29/2024 06:47:10 PM EDT Other: Stop wasting money and increasing dues. We need to dissolve the HoA

Anonymous 7 08/01/2024 05:30:54 PM EDT Other: Free standing weight racks.

Anonymous 8 07/22/2024 06:38:26 PM EDT Other: Concept 2 rowers

Assault Bikes

Free weights/squat rack, barbells/bumper plates, dumbells set-up to 150 lbs

Kettlebells(various weight)

1

mailto:jamell.warfield@yahoo.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



 

Villages of Westport 
Field Operations Report 

 
Date of report: August 12th, 2024                     Submitted by: Tim Harden       

Operational projects in progress:   
 

Solicitation of bids from other landscaping contractors 
At last month’s meeting the Board asked staff to collect proposals from other landscaping contractors for 

maintaining the landscaping at the Villages of Westport.  The current landscaping budget is obsolete since the 

District is absorbing the new phase at the north end of the community.  Staff asked Yellowstone to provide an 

estimate for adding the new phase of the District with the same scope as the current contract.  Yellowstone 

has proposed amending the current contract with an increase of $22,020 from $53,222.52 to $75,242.52.  The 

other quotes received from other vendors include the following: 

     

      Mowing Spraying        Irrigation    Flowers Detail              Total 

1. Brightview -   $52,488.00 + $18,300.00 + $3,036.00 + $5,046.00                     = $78,870.00 

2. Koehn Outdoor -  $56,580.00 + $11,600.00 + $4,200.00 + $3,915.00                     = $76,295.00 

3. VerdeGo Landscape -  $53,858.10 + $10,000.24 + $4,646.40 + $3,915.00 + $9,600    = $82,019.74 

 

Details by Provider 

Brightview- 42 annual mows, 7 ground and shrub fertilizations annually, monthly irrigation inspection are 

included. Mulch is $60/cu yd, flowers rotations are $2.90 each and palm tree trimming $55 per tree. (For VOW 

870 flowers at $2.90 ea. for total of $2,523.00 per rotation) (Irrigation repair is $85 per hour plus materials) 

Koehn Outdoor- 42 annual mows, monthly fertilization, monthly irrigation inspection are included. Mulch, 

flowers rotations and tree trimming above 10 ft is per proposal. (For VOW 870 flowers at $2.25 ea. for total of 

$1,957.50 per rotation) (Irrigation repair is $80 per hour plus materials) 

VerdeGo Landscape- 38 annual mows, 3 annual turf fertilizations, 1 annual tree and shrub fertilization, 

monthly irrigation inspection and monthly detail work is included. Mulch, flowers rotations and tree trimming 

above 10 ft is per proposal. (For VOW 870 flowers, $2.25 ea. Or $1,957.50 per rotation for total of $7,262.60) 

(Irrigation repair is $65 per hour plus materials and $100 per hour for specialized work) 

Yellowstone- Mowing, monthly fertilization, monthly irrigation inspections and flower rotations are included. 

Mulch and palm trimming are per proposal.  (Irrigation repairs are billed at $93 per hour) 

  

Solitude’s proposal for adding additional ponds in new phase 
Staff asked Solitude for a proposal to add pond management services for the two ponds in the new phase of 

Villages of Westport CDD.  The proposal has been added to the meeting agenda for consideration by the 

Board.  Solitude proposes adding $295 to the current monthly invoice of $1,152.30 to make a new monthly 

expense of $1,447.23.  This will increase the current annual expense from $13,826.76 to $17,366.76.   

 



Additional proposals for renovating the irrigation around the amenity center 

The current drip irrigation system in place is a trip hazard and the lines have been moved from their original 

placement.  The Board requested that staff solicit bids to replace the current system with an in-ground 

system.  Previous bids received for modifying the irrigation around the amenity center included Yellowstone at 

$13,481.50 and C&L Landscaping at $57,960.  Staff has collected the following additional estimates: 

 

1. Down To Earth - $9,048.19 

2. Tree Amigos - $ 

3. VerdeGo - $ 

 

Tree Amigos and VerdeGo to provide proposals the week of 8/12. 

 

 

Update on pine bark refreshing at entryways of Creston, Keniston and Devinston 

First Coast Mulch has advised staff that the Villages of Westport can expect to see the delivery of pine bark for 

the entrances of Creston, Keniston and Devinston during the last week in August.  Staff has provided First 

Coast Mulch with a service agreement.  We are currently awaiting a fully executed contract in order to 

proceed. 

 

Maintenance Projects completed: 

 

installation of new water fountains 

On August 7th, Turner Plumbing installed the new water fountains on the pool deck.  The old fountains were 

an eyesore and the new fountains include a chilling function and a bottle filler.  

  

Old fountains      New fountains 

                
 

 



Filling in of holes worn in pavers on pool deck 

Staff noticed several pool pavers on the south side of the pool deck that had holes worn in them.  Some of 

these holes had sharp edges and posed a hazard to residents using the pool.  The holes were filled in with a 

concrete patch material.    

 

Before       After 

                              
  

 

Refurbishment of the fire extinguisher cabinet 

When current staff came onsite there was an old rusty fire extinguisher cabinet to the left just inside the 

amenity center gate.  A new fire extinguisher was installed with a red plastic cabinet directly across from the 

old rusty, white cabinet.  Staff removed the old white cabinet and moved the new red cabinet into the spot 

where the old cabinet was mounted.  The new cabinet was then trimmed out and repainted to match the 

surrounding siding.     

 

 Before       After 

       
 

 

 

 



Issues for concern: 

1. We are regularly vacuuming up sand from the pool.  This sand is coming from the filters.  This 

should be a high priority because as the filters loose sand the filtration capability will be degraded.  

Staff is currently soliciting proposals from pool contractors to make the necessary repairs. 

2. The playground regularly floods with any substantial rainfall.  Staff will work with the District 

Engineer to come up with a solution and get proposals for the work.  Cost estimates will be 

provided as soon as possible.   

3. Ceiling fans on the pool deck are mismatched.  Staff can install new fans at the Boards direction.    

 

If you have any comments or questions, feel free to contact me at tharden@vestapropertyservices.com. 

 

mailto:tharden@vestapropertyservices.com
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.vestapropertyservices.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Ctharden%40vestapropertyservices.com%7C9a14ceea7431425602dc08dc54126c05%7C8af8744420b64d0d8eb034a4747a03fd%7C0%7C0%7C638477685946923534%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zh2fAkahU8nHZRdY0f7Q0ZgOYQ73w07GNDqJS9AWs9A%3D&reserved=0


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
VILLAGES OF WESTPORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Villages of Westport Community 

Development District was held Thursday, July 22, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. at the Highlands Regional 

Library, 1826 Dunn Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida.  

 
 Present and constituting a quorum: 
 
 
 Yashekia Scarlett by phone Chairman 
 Anina Guyton  Vice Chairperson (via phone) 
 Alice Sanford Supervisor 
 Godfrey Story Supervisor 
 Carl Hawkins Supervisor  
  
 Also present: 
 
 
 Darrin Mossing District Manager 
 Jennifer Kilinski  District Counsel 
 Chris Loy  Kilinski Van Wyk  
 Tim Harden Field Manager, Vesta  
 Jay King  Vesta 
 
 
 The following is a summary of the actions taken at the July 22, 2024 Regular Meeting of 

the Board of Supervisors of the Villages of Westport Community Development District. 

 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call  
 Mr. Mossing called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and called roll. Three Supervisors 

were in attendance and one Supervisor joined by phone constituting a quorum.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments (regarding agenda items 
below)  

 Mr. Mossing noted this section of public comment is for items on the agenda. There will 

be a separate public comment period regarding the budget. Hearing no comments, the next item 

followed. 

 



July 22, 2024 Villages of Westport CDD 

2 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Fiscal Year 2025 Budget  
A. Overview of Budget 

 Mr. Mossing noted the Board approved the proposed budget on May 13th. This budget 

reflects an assessment increase of approximately $239 per homeowner. This increase is due to the 

District needing to establish some capital reserves and operating reserves as well as Phase 4 home 

improvements with maintenance items transitioning to the District. Changes can be made to the 

budget with the exception of increases. Line items are set at the highwater mark.  

 

B. Board Discussion 
 Mr. Mossing asked the Board for any questions or comments before opening up to public 

comment. Mr. Hawkins stated he hates to raise prices because everything is going up, but there 

are things that they know they need to do and need money to do it and they are tired of band aiding 

issues in the community.  

 

C. Two Public Hearings – Budget and Assessment Imposition for Fiscal Year 2025 
 Mr. Mossing asked for a motion to open the public hearing.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Story, seconded by Mr. Hawkins, with all in 
favor, Opening the Public Hearing, was approved. 

  

• Resident (Damon Johnson) – How did the District arrive at $239 being the necessary 

increase? When will that be reviewed? Mr. Mossing noted the budget is set based on 

anticipated expenditures and reserve funds. It’s an annual process so that number is 

reevaluated each year. 

• Resident – Will the budget drop with more homeowners moving into new phase? Ms. 

Kilinski noted there are 748 lots and all of those are already being allocated the full 

assessment level. New homeowners don’t make any difference where it gets assessed 

because everybody is paying equally already. Right now, LGI is paying like they are a 

resident.  

• Resident (Alex, Glimmer Way) – Why is there an increase with 200 added properties but 

those properties didn’t exist last year. That money last year was allocated. Mr. Mossing 



July 22, 2024 Villages of Westport CDD 

3 

noted those lots paid last year too. They haven’t added in any property. They paid for 19 

lots that they are not developing.  

• Resident – Commented that things that were used to entice people into the community 

haven’t happened. Nothing is being done. Doesn’t mind paying an increase if they are 

getting what they pay for. Mr. Mossing noted this Board is very interested in making 

improvements and showing results.  

• Resident (KeArra Robinson, 6704 Hanford St.) asked if anything else can be cut to keep 

from increasing fees. Mr. Hawkins noted this is through taxes. He noted that the resident 

was talking about HOA stuff. Mr. Mossing noted they are 100% collected with their 

assessments. Ms. Kilinski noted there hasn’t been an assessment increase on the CDD side 

in at least 4 years.  

 Mr. Mossing asked for any other comments. Hearing no other comments, Mr. Mossing 

asked for a motion to close the public hearing 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Story, seconded by Mr. Hawkins, with all in 
favor, Closing the Public Hearing, was approved. 

 

1. Consideration of Resolution 2024-07, Relating to the Annual Appropriations and 
Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2025  

 Mr. Mossing asked for a motion to approve Resolution 2024-07, relating to the annual 

appropriations and adopting the budget for Fiscal Year 2025. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Story, seconded by Ms. Scarlett, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2024-07, Relating to the Annual Appropriations 
and Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2025, was approved. 

    

2. Consideration of Resolution 2024-08, Imposing Special Assessments and 
Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2025 

 Mr. Mossing asked if the Board had any questions on Resolution 2024-08. Hearing no 

questions from the Board, Mr. Mossing asked for a motion to approve the resolution. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Story, seconded by Ms. Scarlett, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2024-08, Imposing Special Assessments and 
Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2025, was approved. 



July 22, 2024 Villages of Westport CDD 

4 

    

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Presentation Regarding CDDs 

 Mr. Mossing noted this will be added to next month’s meeting.  

  

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of CDD Goals & Objectives 

 Mr. Mossing stated there is a new statutory requirement for CDD’s to adopt goals and 

objectives by the end of this fiscal year 09/30/24. GMS drafted some recommended goals and 

objectives in the agenda package. He noted that changes or additions can be made. Ms. Kilinski 

recommended approval to be statutorily compliant by October 1st.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Story, seconded by Mr. Hawkins, with all in 
favor, the CDD Goals and Objectives, was approved. 

    

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Standard Operating 
Procedures for Onsite Staff 

 Mr. Mossing noted this is based on some observations made over the last couple of months 

and is on page 91 of the agenda package. He noted they will monitor vendors coming onsite 

without staff being present and review at next meeting. They don’t want unauthorized people using 

the facility and when appropriate vendors to be escorted onsite.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Story, seconded by Mr. Hawkins, with all in 
favor, the Standard Operating Procedures for Onsite Staff with 
Specifications on Monitoring, was approved. 

    

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion Items: 
A. Access Card Form 

 Mr. Mossing noted the access form is in the agenda. There has been some confusion on 

what form to use for people to get their access card. Ms. Kilinski noted the District is undertaking 

the opportunity to establish its own email blast system. This will allow the CDD to get emails and 

consent to make sure they are on the CDDs email list. Mr. Story noted having a card doesn’t 

necessarily mean you’re a resident. Mr. Mossing noted they are considering a full audit of the card 

access system at some point. If someone was issued a card, they should have shown a lease 

agreement or photo ID.  



July 22, 2024 Villages of Westport CDD 

5 

  

On MOTION by Mr. Story, seconded by Mr. Hawkins, with all in 
favor, the Access Card Form, was approved. 

    

B. Access Card Issuance Process 
 Mr. Harden stated new residents would have to come to the facility or reach out by phone. 

Requirements include completing the form and providing documentation such as photo ID, lease 

agreement, or online lookup to confirm the property owner. One card per resident. For residents 

who move out of their home, the access cards are connected with their address and not name. The 

card would need to be deactivated. Mr. Story asked if GMS could monitor the card access system 

as the current way took 3 weeks to retrieve an address. In case of a renter, their card could be set 

to expire at the end of their lease. Mr. Hawkins requested an audit of the access system. Mr. 

Mossing will get with Tim and Jay and come back to the next meeting with the audit and how the 

Board wants to handle that. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Story, seconded by Mr. Hawkins, with all in 
favor, the Access Card Issuance Process, was approved. 

    

C. Security Cameras 
Defer to next meeting for noticing a shade session.  

   

D. Community Survey Regarding Fitness Equipment Usage 
 Mr. Mossing stated a survey is included in the agenda. Six people have completed the 

survey on the website and approximately 50 people signed up for the email blast. They will 

continue to monitor. Board direction was to get rid of the treadmill as it is a hazard.  

     

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals: 
A. Lake Management Proposals  

 Mr. Harden had proposals from three pond management companies included in the agenda. 

Mr. Story noted Solitude is spraying too high resulting in brown grass around the ponds. Solitude 

took responsibility for their actions. Ms. Scarlett agrees with taking this off the table as long as 

Solitude is consistent. Solitude will wait 30 days to see if grass comes back and if not, will replace. 

    



July 22, 2024 Villages of Westport CDD 

6 

B. Water Fountains 
 Mr. Harden presented proposals from three different plumbing companies to dispose 

of/replace the current bi-level water fountains and one of the new ones will have a bottle filler 

attached. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Story, seconded by Mr. Hawkins, with all in 
favor, the Proposal from Turner for Water Fountain Replacement, 
was approved. 

    

C. Fitness Equipment Maintenance 
 Mr. King noted they will deactivate the treadmill and relocate it. Will move this item to the 

next budget cycle.  

   

D. Irrigation Installation 
 Mr. Harden presented a proposal from Yellowstone for $13,000 and from C&L 

Landscaping for $57,960. Ms. Sanford suggested irrigation replacement be added to all of the 

proposals. This item was tabled until two more proposals are received. 

   

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2024-09, 
Modifying the FY 2024 Assessment Collection 
Schedule  

 Mr. Mossing noted last year when the budget was adopted, the assessment resolution did 

not include the LGI property being direct assessed and this resolution provides for that 

modification. It goes back retroactively and restates that.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Hawkins, seconded by Mr. Story, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2024-09 Modifying the FY24 Assessment 
Collection Schedule, was approved.    

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
A. Manager – Discussion Regarding the Fiscal Year 2025 Meeting Schedule  

Mr. Mossing stated statutorily the District needs to approve an annual meeting schedule 

prior to September 30th of each year. There are four proposed meeting dates - October 28, 2024, 

January 27, 2025, April 28, 2025 and July 28,2025. 



July 22, 2024 Villages of Westport CDD 

7 

 The fitness survey is out and email blast system is in progress so will keep the Board 

informed. Weekly communication on the pool monitor agreement and activities at the pool as 

reported. In the process of transferring some utility accounts and maintenance responsibilities to 

LGI. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Hawkins, seconded by Mr. Story, with all in 
favor, the Fiscal Year 2025 Meeting Schedule, was approved. 

    

B. Attorney  
Ms. Kilinski had nothing specific to report but noted that she was happy to answer any 

questions.  

 

C. Operation Manager  
1. Report 
2. Report Various Issues Throughout the Community 
Mr. Harden presented the Field Operations Report on page 159 of the agenda.  

   

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Request  
 There being no comments,  next item followed.  

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comments  
• Resident (Brian Persina, 6907 Myrtle Oak Rd) Questioned the increased fee, is it annual? 

Maintenance responsibility? Mr. Mossing noted in the development with LGI that is going 

to be the responsibility of this Board, two big lakes, dog park and the park up front which 

is what is the assessment will help fund. Resident asked how to obtain access card? The 

board directed residents to provide information to Mr. Harden to get access card. Mr. 

Hawkins asked if it’s possible to give the packet to LGI when they sell the homes so the 

homeowners can fill out the packet? Add link for access card form to the website. 

• Resident – Increasing size of amenity to accommodate the additional people moving into 

the community? Mr. Story noted there was supposed to be a second amenity center at one 

time that didn’t happen. Potential to revisit that going into new fiscal year. Opportunities 

in near future for the community to address this.  

 



July 22, 2024 Villages of Westport CDD 

8 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Consent Agenda 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the May 13, 2024 and June 27, 2024 Meetings 

 Mr. Mossing presented the minutes from the May 13, 2024 & June 27, 2024 meetings.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Story, seconded by Mr. Hawkins, with all in 
favor, the Consent Agenda, was approved.  

 

B. Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures for the Period Ending June 
30, 2024 

C. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
D. Approval of Check Register  

 Mr. Mossing noted that the balance sheet, income statement, and assessment receipt 

schedule are in the agenda package for review and asked for any questions.  

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of Vesta Resignation Letter  

 Mr. King noted this is just with the CDD, current scope of services. Mr. Story asked if they 

would reconsider that because the Board is now intact and trying to move in a different direction. 

Mr. King noted they are definitely open to that. Mr. Hawkins stated he would like to look at what 

GMS can offer that you currently do that could help enhance or alleviate issues. Service contracts 

need to be reviewed.  

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – To Be Determined 
@ 5:30 p.m. @ Highlands Regional Library  

 Mr. Mossing recommended an August meeting and asked for a date preference from the 

Board. Board consensus was to meet Monday August 19th at 5:30 p.m. at the Highlands Regional 

Library.  

  

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment  
 Mr. Mossing adjourned the meeting.  

On MOTION by Mr. Story seconded by Mr. Hawkins, with all in 
favor, the meeting was adjourned.  

 
 
 

 



July 22, 2024 Villages of Westport CDD 

9 

_______________________________   _______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



Villages of Westport
Community Development District

July 31, 2024
Unaudited Financial Reporting



1 Balance Sheet

2-3 General Fund Statement

4 Debt Service Statement Series 2005A

5 Capital Projects Fund

6-7 Month to Month

8 Long Term Debt

9 Assessment Receipts Schedule

TABLE OF CONTENTS



Totals

General Fund Debt Service Capital Projects (memorandum only)

Assets
Cash

Operating $106,663 ---- ---- $106,663

Debit Card $728 ---- ---- $728

SBA $5,588 ---- ---- $5,588

Assessment Receivable ---- ---- ---- $0

Interest Receivable ---- ---- ---- $0

Due from Capital Projects $3,378 ---- ---- $3,378

Due from Debt Service $0 ---- ---- $0

Due from General Fund ---- $6,391 ---- $6,391

Investments:

Series 2005A

Reserve A5 ---- $507,526 ---- $507,526

Revenue A5 ---- $432,533 ---- $432,533

Interest A5 ---- ---- ---- $0

Prepayment A5 ---- $182,289 ---- $182,289

Acquisition & Construction ---- ---- $81,628 $81,628

Deferred Cost ---- ---- $15,214 $15,214

Prepaid Expenses $0 ---- ---- $0

Total Assets $116,356 $1,128,740 $96,842 $1,341,937

Liabilities
Accounts Payable $11,007 ---- ---- $11,007

Due to Debt Service $6,391 ---- ---- $6,391

Due to General Fund ---- $0 ---- $0

Fund Equity

Fund Balances

Unassigned $98,957 ---- ---- $98,957

Nonspendable- Prepaid $0 ---- ---- $0

Restricted for Capital Projects ---- ---- $96,842 $96,842

Restricted for Debt Service ---- $1,128,740 ---- $1,128,740

Total Liabilities, Fund Equity, Other $116,356 $1,128,740 $96,842 $1,341,937

Villages of Westport
Community Development District

Balance Sheet
July 31, 2024

Governmental Fund Types



Adopted Prorated Budget Actuals
Budget 07/31/24 7/31/24 Variance

Revenues

Maintenance Assessments- Tax Roll 234,837$               234,837$             235,470$             633$                    

Maintenance Assessments- Direct Bills 98,718$                  98,718$                101,186$             2,468$                 

Interest Income -$                         -$                      22$                        22$                       

Interest Income - SBA -$                         -$                      253$                      253$                    

Miscellaneous Income -$                         -$                      210$                      210$                    

Total Revenue 333,555$              333,555$           337,141$            3,586$               

Expenditures 

Administrative 

Supervisors Fees 4,800$                    4,000$                  3,600$                  400$                    

Engineering -$                         -$                      -$                       -$                     

Arbitrage 1,000$                    833$                     -$                       833$                    

Assessment Roll 5,000$                    5,000$                  -$                       5,000$                 

Dissemination 5,000$                    4,167$                  2,100$                  2,067$                 

Amortization Schedule 250$                        208$                     -$                       208$                    

Attorney 15,000$                  12,500$                18,048$                (5,548)$               

Annual Audit 5,000$                    4,167$                  -$                       4,167$                 

Trustee Fees 3,720$                    3,717$                  3,717$                  -$                     

Management Fees 27,500$                  22,917$                25,970$                (3,053)$               

Information Technology -$                         -$                      1,200$                  (1,200)$               

Website 2,520$                    2,100$                  1,300$                  800$                    

Telephone -$                         -$                      126$                      (126)$                  

Postage 250$                        208$                     341$                      (133)$                  

Printing & Binding -$                         -$                      195$                      (195)$                  

Insurance-Liability 4,700$                    4,700$                  4,358$                  342$                    

Insurance-Public Official 3,863$                    3,581$                  3,581$                  -$                     

Legal Advertising 1,500$                    1,250$                  1,192$                  58$                       

Other Current Charges 1,000$                    833$                     1,296$                  (463)$                  

Office Supplies -$                         -$                      16$                        (16)$                     

Dues, License, & Subscriptions 175$                        175$                     175$                      -$                     

Administration Subtotal 81,278$                70,357$              67,215$              3,142$               

Common Area Maintenance: 

Field Services 19,200$                  16,000$                16,000$                -$                     

Landscape Maintenance 54,000$                  45,000$                45,292$                (292)$                  

Irrigation - Repairs 2,500$                    2,083$                  3,054$                  (971)$                  

Lake Maintenance 14,000$                  11,667$                11,557$                110$                    

Repairs and Maintenance - Field 5,000$                    4,167$                  5,249$                  (1,083)$               

Contingency 8,000$                    6,667$                  -$                       6,667$                 

Total Common Area Maintenance 102,700$              85,583$              81,152$              4,431$               

Villages of Westport

Community Development District

General Fund

For the Period Ending July 31, 2024

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures 



Adopted Prorated Budget Actuals
Budget 07/31/24 7/31/24 Variance

Villages of Westport

Community Development District

General Fund

For the Period Ending July 31, 2024

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures 

Amenity Center:

Facility/Pool Attendants/Security 40,000$                  33,333$                14,895$                18,439$              

Janitorial 11,000$                  9,167$                  9,285$                  (119)$                  

Pool Maintenance 18,000$                  15,000$                17,580$                (2,580)$               

Pool Permits 400$                        400$                     325$                      75$                       

Utilites - Water/Electric 45,000$                  37,500$                25,967$                11,533$              

Trash -$                         -$                      179$                      (179)$                  

Pest Control 500$                        417$                     440$                      (23)$                     

Irrigation Repair 3,000$                    2,500$                  -$                       2,500$                 

Insurance - Property 7,230$                    7,230$                  6,571$                  659$                    

Telephone 1,500$                    1,250$                  1,292$                  (42)$                     

Access Control 1,700$                    1,417$                  98$                        1,318$                 

Security Camera System/Monitoring 6,120$                    5,100$                  5,600$                  (500)$                  

Facilities Maintenance - Contract 10,127$                  8,439$                  9,077$                  (638)$                  

Repairs and Maintenance - Amenity 5,000$                    4,167$                  -$                       4,167$                 

Total Amenity Center 149,577$              125,919$           91,308$              34,611$             

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfer In/(Out) -$                         -$                      -$                       -$                     

Total Other -$                        -$                     -$                      -$                    

Total Expenditures 333,555$              281,859$           239,676$            42,183$             

Excess Revenues/ (Expenditures) (0)$                          97,465$              

Beginning Fund Balance -$                        1,493$                 

Ending Fund Balance (0)$                          98,957$              



 

Adopted Prorated Budget Actual

Budget 7/31/24 7/31/24 Variance

Revenues

 

Special Assessments- Tax Roll 551,111$           551,111$                          552,601$           1,491$                

Special Assessments- Direct A5 242,411$           242,411$                          248,471$           6,060$                

Special Assessments- Prepayment -$                     -$                                    180,407$           180,407$           

Interest Income -$                     -$                                    43,707$              43,707$              

Total Revenues 793,522$          793,522$                         1,025,187$      231,665$         

 

Expenditures  

 

Series 2005A

Interest-11/1 195,938$           195,938$                          195,938$           -$                     

Interest-5/1 195,938$           195,938$                          195,938$           -$                     

Principal-5/1 410,000$           410,000$                          410,000$           -$                     

Total Expenditures 801,875$          801,875$                         801,875$         -$                    

Other Sources/Uses

Transfer In/(Out) -$                    -$                                   2,125$               2,125$               

Total Other Sources/ (Uses) -$                    -$                                   2,125$               2,125$               

Excess Revenues/(Expenditures) (8,353)$             225,437$         

  

Beginning Fund Balance 192,606$          903,303$         

Ending Fund Balance 184,253$          1,128,740$      

Due from General Fund 6,391$                

Due to Genral Fund

Assessment Receivable ----

Interest Receivable ----

Reserve A5 507,526$           

Revenue A5 432,533$           

Interest A5 ----

Prepayment A5 182,289$           

Total 1,128,740$      

 

Villages of Westport
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund Series 2005A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the Period Ending July 31, 2024



 

Series 

2005A

Revenues

 

Interest Income $24,739

Developer Contributions $0

Interfund Transfer In $0

Total Revenues $24,739

Expenditures

Capital Outlay $517,762

Professional Fees $0

Miscellaneous $0

Total Expenditures $517,762

Other Sources/(Uses)

Transfer In/(Out) ($2,125)

Total Other Sources/ (Uses) ($2,125)

Excess Revenues/(Expenditures) ($495,148)

 

Beginning Fund Balance $591,990

Ending Fund Balance $96,842

 

Villages of Westport
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the Period Ending July 31, 2024



October November December January February March April May June July August September Total

Revenues

Maintenance Assessments- Tax Roll -$             195,431$   34,043$     1,030$        -$             1,180$        1,062$        -$             2,723$        -$             -$             -$             235,470$           

Maintenance Assessments- Direct Bills -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             101,186$   -$             -$             -$             -$             101,186$           
Interest Income 0$                 0$                 8$                 4$                 2$                 2$                 1$                 1$                 1$                 2$                 -$             -$             22$                      
Interest Income - SBA 26$              25$              26$              26$              24$              26$              25$              26$              25$              26$              -$             -$             253$                    
Miscellaneous Income -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             120$            90$              -$             -$             -$             210$                    

Total Revenue 26$              195,456$ 34,077$    1,060$       26$              1,208$       1,089$       101,332$ 2,839$       28$              -$            -$            337,141$         

Expenditures 

Administrative 
Supervisors Fees 600$            -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             600$            800$            800$            800$            -$             -$             3,600$                
Engineering -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     
Arbitrage -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     
Assessment Roll -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     
Dissemination -$             -$             250$            350$            250$            250$            250$            250$            250$            250$            -$             -$             2,100$                
Amortization Schedule -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     
Attorney 2,504$        479$            251$            1,426$        1,114$        586$            2,074$        4,352$        5,263$        -$             -$             -$             18,048$             
Annual Audit -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     
Trustee Fees 3,717$        -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             3,717$                
Management Fees -$             -$             3,246$        3,246$        3,246$        3,246$        3,246$        3,246$        3,246$        3,246$        -$             -$             25,970$             
Information Technology -$             -$             150$            150$            150$            150$            150$            150$            150$            150$            -$             -$             1,200$                
Website -$             -$             100$            600$            100$            100$            100$            100$            100$            100$            -$             -$             1,300$                
Telephone -$             -$             93$              -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             33$              -$             -$             126$                    
Postage -$             -$             8$                 6$                 86$              60$              3$                 56$              92$              30$              -$             -$             341$                    
Printing & Binding 2$                 -$             7$                 5$                 4$                 16$              -$             2$                 90$              69$              -$             -$             195$                    
Insurance-Liability 4,358$        -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             4,358$                
Insurance-Public Official 3,581$        -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             3,581$                
Legal Advertising -$             -$             -$             -$             80$              -$             159$            156$            797$            -$             -$             -$             1,192$                
Other Current Charges -$             -$             50$              50$              50$              50$              50$              50$              946$            50$              -$             -$             1,296$                
Office Supplies 14$              -$             0$                 0$                 0$                 0$                 0$                 0$                 0$                 0$                 -$             -$             16$                      
Dues, License, & Subscriptions -$             175$            -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             175$                    

Total Administrative 14,776$    654$           4,155$       5,834$       5,080$       4,458$       6,633$       9,162$       11,736$    4,729$       -$            -$            67,215$            

Month by Month

Community Development District 
Villages of Westport



October November December January February March April May June July August September Total

Month by Month

Community Development District 
Villages of Westport

Common Area Maintenance
Field Services 1,600$        1,600$        1,600$        1,600$        1,600$        1,600$        1,600$        1,600$        1,600$        1,600$        -$             -$             16,000$             
Landscape Maintenance 4,435$        4,435$        4,435$        4,435$        4,435$        4,435$        4,435$        5,375$        4,435$        4,435$        -$             -$             45,292$             
Landscape Improvements -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     
Irrigation - Repairs -$             -$             -$             -$             3,054$        -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             3,054$                
Lake Maintenance 1,152$        1,152$        1,152$        1,152$        1,152$        1,152$        1,152$        1,152$        1,152$        1,187$        -$             -$             11,557$             
Repairs and Maintenance 1,499$        5$                 112$            155$            54$              -$             58$              738$            912$            1,715$        -$             -$             5,249$                
Contingency - Hurricane Repairs -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     

Total Common Area Maintenance 8,687$       7,193$       7,299$       7,343$       10,295$    7,187$       7,246$       8,865$       8,100$       8,937$       -$            -$            81,152$            

Amenity Center:
Facility/Pool Attendants -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             329$            7,994$        6,572$        -$             -$             14,895$             
Janitorial 910$            910$            910$            921$            925$            910$            930$            910$            946$            1,013$        -$             -$             9,285$                
Pool Maintenance 1,208$        1,208$        1,208$        1,208$        1,208$        1,267$        1,208$        1,264$        2,308$        5,490$        -$             -$             17,580$             
Pool Chemicals -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     
Pool Permits -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             325$            -$             -$             -$             325$                    
Utilities - Water/Electric 3,186$        3,275$        2,865$        2,435$        2,116$        1,788$        2,600$        2,416$        2,712$        2,573$        -$             -$             25,967$             
Trash 179$            -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             179$                    
Pest Control 44$              44$              44$              44$              44$              44$              44$              44$              44$              47$              -$             -$             440$                    
Irrigation Repair -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     
Insurance - Property 6,571$        -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             6,571$                
Telephone 123$            -$             123$            255$            -$             132$            132$            263$            -$             263$            -$             -$             1,292$                
Access Control -$             -$             98$              -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             98$                      
Community Events -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     
Security Patrolling -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     
Security Camera System/Monitoring 560$            560$            560$            560$            560$            560$            560$            560$            560$            560$            -$             -$             5,600$                
Repairs and Maintenance Building - Contract 908$            908$            908$            908$            908$            908$            908$            908$            908$            908$            -$             -$             9,077$                
Repairs and Maintenance Grounds -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     
Office Supplies -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     
Dues anand License -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     

Total Amenity Center 13,689$    6,904$       6,717$       6,331$       5,761$       5,608$       6,381$       6,693$       15,798$    17,426$    -$            -$            91,308$            

Other 
Contingency -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     
Capital Reserve -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$                     

Total Other -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$                    

Total Expenditures 37,151$    14,751$    18,171$    19,507$    21,136$    17,253$    20,260$    24,721$    35,633$    31,092$    -$            -$            239,676$         

Excess Revenues/ (Expenditures) (37,125)$  180,705$ 15,906$    (18,447)$  (21,110)$  (16,046)$  (19,171)$  76,611$    (32,794)$  (31,064)$  -$            -$            97,465$            



OPTIONAL REDEMPTION DATE 5/1/2013
INTEREST RATE: 5.70%
MATURITY DATE: 5/1/2035
RESERVE FUND DEFINITION 6.9126% BONDS DEEMED OUTSTANDING
RESERVE FUND REQUIREMENT $507,526
RESERVE FUND BALANCE $507,526

BONDS OUTSTANDING - 9-30-22 $7,265,000
LESS: PRINCIPAL PAYMENT - 05/01/23 ($390,000)
LESS: PRINCIPAL PAYMENT - 05/01/24 ($410,000)

CURRENT BONDS OUTSTANDING $6,465,000  

 

Community Development District

Villages of Westport

Long Term Debt Report

SERIES 2005A, SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



Gross Assessment 849,670.93$            595,795.33$            253,875.60$            

Less: Disc. & Coll. (7.5%) (63,725.32)$             (44,684.65)$             (19,040.67)$             

Net Assessment 785,945.61$            551,110.68$            234,834.93$            

Date Amount Debt Service O&M

11/3/23 3,146.80$                 2,206.56$                 940.24$                    

11/14/23 7,525.22$                 5,276.74$                 2,248.48$                 

11/21/23 6,020.18$                 4,221.39$                 1,798.79$                 

11/28/23 39,566.29$               27,744.17$               11,822.12$               

11/30/23 597,809.39$            419,188.22$            178,621.17$            

12/6/23 99,568.15$               69,817.90$               29,750.25$               

12/14/23 12,861.95$               9,018.89$                 3,843.06$                 

12/22/23 1,505.04$                 1,055.34$                 449.70$                    

1/9/24 3,448.18$                 2,417.89$                 1,030.29$                 

3/6/24 1,552.07$                 1,088.32$                 463.75$                    

3/20/24 2,398.58$                 1,681.90$                 716.68$                    

4/4/24 1,987.07$                 1,393.35$                 593.72$                    

4/18/24 1,567.76$                 1,099.32$                 468.44$                    

6/21/24 9,114.72$                 6,391.31$                 2,723.41$                 

Total 788,071.40$            552,601.30$            235,470.10$            

Remaining -$                           -$                           -$                           

Percentage Collected 100% 100% 100%

Villages of Westport
Community Development District

Assessment Receipts Schedule  - Fiscal Year 2024



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



   

Bank Date Check No.'s Amount

General Fund 7/3/24 1955 - 1963 19,934.52$                                   

7/19/24 1964 - 1969 19,999.91$                                   

7/30/24 1970 - 1974 1,360.00$                                     

41,294.43$                          

Utilities 7/1/24 Comcast 131.62$                                         

7/17/24 JEA 213.36$                                         

7/17/24 JEA 2,360.09$                                     

7/31/24 Comcast 131.62$                                         

2,836.69$                            

Debit Card 7/3/24 Walmart 29.34$                                           

7/5/24 Home Depot 104.09$                                         

7/5/24 Pinch A Penny 179.94$                                         

7/9/24 Amazon 61.48$                                           

7/10/24 Lowes 571.48$                                         

7/25/24 Amazon 41.74$                                           

7/25/24 Amazon 47.26$                                           

7/30/24 Amazon 16.98$                                           

1,052.31$                            

TOTAL 45,183.43$                          

Villages of Westport 
Community Development District

Check Register Summary 

July 1, 2024 to July 31, 2024



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  8/07/24          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2024 - 07/31/2024 ***       VILL OF WESTPORT - GENERAL

BANK A VILLAGES OF WESTPORT

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/03/24 00053 6/21/24 144551   202406 310-51300-49000                                     *              881.41
PRINT,POSTAGE,MAIL

CHEROKEE PRINTING INC DBA                                         881.41 001955
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/03/24 00011 6/27/24 06272024 202406 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

6.27.24 PAYROLL
ALICE SANFORD                                                     200.00 001956

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/03/24 00051 6/27/24 06272024 202406 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

6.27.24 PAYROLL
ANINA GUYTON                                                      200.00 001957

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/03/24 00050 6/27/24 06272024 202406 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

6.27.24 PAYROLL
CARL HAWKINS                                                      200.00 001958

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/03/24 00049 6/27/24 06272024 202406 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

6.27.24 PAYROLL
GODFREY STORY                                                     200.00 001959

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/03/24 00029 7/01/24 74       202407 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,246.25

JUL MANAGEMENT FEES
7/01/24 74       202407 310-51300-49500                                     *              100.00

JUL WEBSITE ADMIN
7/01/24 74       202407 310-51300-35100                                     *              150.00

JUL INFO TECH
7/01/24 74       202407 310-51300-31300                                     *              250.00

JUL DISSEM AGENT SERVICES
7/01/24 74       202407 310-51300-49000                                     *               50.00

JUL RECORD STORAGE
7/01/24 74       202407 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .39

OFFICE SUPPLIES
7/01/24 74       202407 310-51300-42000                                     *               30.02

POSTAGE
7/01/24 74       202407 310-51300-42500                                     *               69.45

COPIES
7/01/24 74       202407 310-51300-41000                                     *               32.90

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                3,929.01 001960

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/03/24 00005 7/01/24 420298   202407 320-53800-34000                                     *            1,600.00

JUL FIELD SERVICES
7/01/24 420298   202407 330-57200-46700                                     *              910.00

JUL JANITORIAL
7/01/24 420298   202407 330-57200-46400                                     *            1,208.33

JUL POOL MAINTENANCE

VWSP VILL O WESTPRT SRICE     



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  8/07/24          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2024 - 07/31/2024 ***       VILL OF WESTPORT - GENERAL

BANK A VILLAGES OF WESTPORT

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

7/01/24 420298   202407 330-57200-46001                                     *              907.67
JUL FACILITY MAINTENANCE

VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                   4,626.00 001961
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/03/24 00016 7/02/24 07022024 202407 300-20700-10000                                     *            1,088.32

3.6 FY24 ASSESSMENTS
7/02/24 07022024 202407 300-20700-10000                                     *            1,681.90

3.20 FY24 ASSESSMENTS
7/02/24 07022024 202407 300-20700-10000                                     *            1,393.35

4.4 FY24 ASSESSMENTS
7/02/24 07022024 202407 300-20700-10000                                     *            1,099.32

4.18 FY24 ASSESSMENTS
VILLAGES OF WESTPORT CDD                                        5,262.89 001962

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/03/24 00006 6/30/24 JAX 7228 202406 320-53800-46200                                     *            4,435.21

JUN LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                           4,435.21 001963

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/19/24 00002 7/16/24 63184098 202407 330-57200-46600                                     *               46.96

JUL PEST CONTROL
BUG OUT                                                            46.96 001964

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/19/24 00054 7/08/24 2041     202407 330-57200-46400                                     *            3,997.29

POOL REPAIR
C BUSS ENTERPRISES, INC.                                        3,997.29 001965

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/19/24 00029 6/30/24 76       202406 330-57200-34800                                     *            3,965.00

JUN POOL MONITOR
7/10/24 75       202406 330-57200-34800                                     *            4,029.25

JUN POOL SECURITY
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                7,994.25 001966

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/19/24 00027 7/15/24 621      202407 320-53800-46000                                     *            1,050.00

REPLACED LIGHTING
HENDRY ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS, INC.                             1,050.00 001967

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/19/24 00032 7/11/24 9867     202406 310-51300-31500                                     *            5,263.00

JUN GENERAL COUNSEL
7/16/24 9868     202406 300-13100-20000                                     *              461.50

JUN PROJECT CONTRUCTION
KILINSKI | VAN WYK, PLLC                                        5,724.50 001968

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/19/24 00004 7/02/24 PSI09133 202407 320-53800-46800                                     *            1,186.91

JUL LAKE MAINTENANCE
SOLITUDE LAKE MANAGEMENT                                        1,186.91 001969

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

VWSP VILL O WESTPRT SRICE     



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  8/07/24          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2024 - 07/31/2024 ***       VILL OF WESTPORT - GENERAL

BANK A VILLAGES OF WESTPORT

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/30/24 00011 7/22/24 07222024 202407 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00
7.22.24 PAYROLL

ALICE SANFORD                                                     200.00 001970
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/30/24 00051 7/22/24 07222024 202407 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

7.22.24 PAYROLL
ANINA GUYTON                                                      200.00 001971

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/30/24 00050 7/22/24 07222024 202407 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

7.22.24 PAYROLL
CARL HAWKINS                                                      200.00 001972

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/30/24 00049 7/22/24 07222024 202407 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

7.22.24 PAYROLL
GODFREY STORY                                                     200.00 001973

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/30/24 00031 7/11/24 74366412 202407 330-57200-34500                                     *              560.00

JUL SECURITY
VECTOR SECURITY, INC.                                             560.00 001974

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 41,294.43

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               41,294.43

VWSP VILL O WESTPRT SRICE     



Invoice
DATE

6/21/2024

INVOICE #

144551

BILL TO

Villages of Westport CDD
475 West Town Place
Suite 114
St Augustine, FL 32092

Advanced Direct Marketing Services
3733 Adirolf Rd.
Jacksonville, FL   32207-4719
(V) 904.396.3028  (F) 396.6328

P.O. NO. TERMS

With Order

PROJECT

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax (7.5%)

SERVICE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Villages of Westport CDD
Load, read, convert files; CASS Certify addresses to enable automation based postage
rates; Create automation based sack/tray tags & postal documents; format for inkjet
addressing

541 0.13863 75.00

Form layout and preparation 1 37.50 37.50
Laser one sheet front & back in color 541 0.35 189.35
Fold customer materials 541 0.06443 34.86
Insert one piece into #10 envelope, seal, sort and mail, Standard Rate 541 0.09021 48.80

#10 Window Envelopes printed one color black ink 561 0.25713 144.25
Postage 541 0.65 351.65

$881.41

$881.41

$0.00

0013105130049000 - 
other current charges 



0013105130011000
6.27.24 Payroll



0013105130034000
0013105130049500
0013105130035100
0013105130031300
0013105130049000
0013105130051000
0013105130042000
0013105130041000



Vesta Property Services, Inc.
245 Riverside Avenue
Suite 300
Jacksonville FL 32202

Invoice

Date 07/01/2024
Invoice # 420298

Bill To
Villages of Westport CDD
c/o GMS LLC
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St. Augustine FL 32092

Terms Net 30

Due Date 07/31/2024

Memo Monthly Fees

Description
Field Services
Janitorial
Pool Maintenance
Facility Maintenance

Quantity
1
1
1
1

Rate
1,600.00

910.00
1,208.33

907.67

Amount
1,600.00

910.00
1,208.33

907.67

Total 4,626.00Thank you for your business.

0013205380034000
0013305720046700
0013305720046400
0013305720046001



Gross Assessment 849,670.93$    595,795.33$    253,875.60$    
Less: Disc. & Coll. (7.5%) (63,725.32)$   (44,684.65)$   (19,040.67)$   
Net Assessment 785,945.61$    551,110.68$    234,834.93$    

Date Amount Debt Service O&M
11/3/23 3,146.80$    2,206.56$    940.24$   

11/14/23 7,525.22$    5,276.74$    2,248.48$    
11/21/23 6,020.18$    4,221.39$    1,798.79$    
11/28/23 39,566.29$    27,744.17$    11,822.12$    
11/30/23 597,809.39$    419,188.22$    178,621.17$    
12/6/23 99,568.15$    69,817.90$    29,750.25$    

12/14/23 12,861.95$    9,018.89$    3,843.06$    
12/22/23 1,505.04$    1,055.34$    449.70$   

1/9/24 3,448.18$    2,417.89$    1,030.29$    
3/6/24 1,552.07$    1,088.32$    463.75$   

3/20/24 2,398.58$    1,681.90$    716.68$   
4/4/24 1,987.07$    1,393.35$    593.72$   

4/18/24 1,567.76$    1,099.32$    468.44$   

Total 778,956.68$    546,209.99$    232,746.69$    
Remaining 6,988.93$    4,900.69$    2,088.24$    

Percentage Collected 99% 99% 99%

Villages	of	Westport
Community	Development	District
Assessment	Receipts	Schedule		-	Fiscal	Year	2024

0013002070010000
3.6 FY24 Assessments

alison
Highlight

alison
Highlight

alison
Highlight

alison
Highlight

alison
Highlight

alison
Highlight

alison
Highlight

alison
Highlight



INVOICE
INVOICE # INVOICE DATE

JAX 722867 6/30/2024

TERMS PO NUMBER

Net 30
Bill To:

Villages of Westport CDD
c/o Vesta Property Services
12546 Dewhurst Circle
Jacksonville, FL 32218

Remit To:

Yellowstone Landscape
PO Box 101017
Atlanta, GA 30392-1017Property Name: Villages of Westport CDD

Address: 12282 Dewhurst Cir,
Jacksonville, FL 32218

Invoice Due Date: July 30, 2024

Invoice Amount: $4,435.21

Description Current Amount

Monthly Landscape Maintenance June 2024 $4,435.21

Invoice Total $4,435.21

Should you have any questions or inquiries please call (386) 437-6211.

Yellowstone Landscape | Post Office Box 849 | Bunnell FL 32110 | Tel 386.437.6211 | Fax 386.437.1286

0013205380046200
Jun landscape Maintenance



INVOICE DETAIL

Bill To #: Date:

Check No.:

Thank you for allowing us to provide the following services:

Payment Receipt. Please Return with Payment Remittance

Amount Paid:

Due Date: Invoice #:

Amount Due:

PO BOX 740608
CINCINNATI OH 45274-0608

A RENTOKIL COMPANY

Invoice 
 Date

PHONE: 877-284-8688
WEB:    www.florida.bugoutservice.com
Text: 877-284-8688

46.96

Governmental Management Services
393 PALM COAST PKWY SW UNIT 4
Palm Coast, FL 32137-4774

INVOICE# 63184098  Governmental Management
Services

A RENTOKIL COMPANY
PO Box 13848
Reading, PA 19612-3848

FAFTAFADFADTFDFTFTFTAADFTFFATAATATTFDTDATDATDADFDTFATDADDTDAAAFTT

BUG OUT
PO BOX 740608
CINCINNATI OH 45274-0608

7/16/20243075531

631840988/15/2024



Page 1 of 1

3075531

 Bill To 
Number

7/16/2024 46.96

Amount
 Due

Seq#: 000001

PEST CONTROL MAINTENANCE 46.96
Villages Of Westport 
6714 Sandle Dr
Jacksonville , FL ON 7/16/2024

0013305720046600
Jul Pest control



LATE PAYMENT FEE INFORMATION
In the event that full payment is past due, a late payment fee will be added to the unpaid late balance. The late 
payment fee is equal to 1.5% per month (18% annual rate) of the unpaid late balance, or such lesser amount as may 
be the maximum amount permitted by law.  This late payment fee will appear on the monthly statement. A minimum 
late charge of $1.00 may be imposed.   

FUEL/TRANSPORTATION SURCHARGE 

Like many other companies that are impacted by the price of gasoline, a rise in gasoline prices may necessitate a fuel 
surcharge. As such, the Company reserves the right to add a fuel surcharge to your invoice for any increase in the cost of fuel 
as measured above 2018 (as measured by the National U.S. Average Motor Gasoline-Regular Fuel Price per Gallon Index 
reported by the U.S. Department of Energy).  The surcharge may be adjusted monthly (up or down) with the price of gasoline. 



INVOICE
C Buss Enterprises
152 Lipizzan Trail
Saint Augustine, FL 32095

clayton@cbussenterprises.com
904-710-8161
https://www.cbussenterprises.com

Bill to

Villages of Westport
6702 Sandle Dr
Jacksonville, FL 32219

Ship to

Villages of Westport
6702 Sandle Dr
Jacksonville, FL 32219

Invoice details

Invoice no.: 2041
Terms: Due on receipt
Invoice date: 07/08/2024
Due date: 08/07/2024

# Product or service Description Qty Rate Amount

1. POOL PARTS CPI STAINLESS STEEL OFF-SET
STRAINER W/ SS BASKET, CLEAR
COVER W/ EASY OPEN LID

1 $3,622.29 $3,622.29

2. LABOR INSTALLATION/REPAIR LABOR, PER
HOUR

3 $125.00 $375.00

Note to customer
THIS REPAIR IS COMPLETE. THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

Total $3,997.29

0013205380046000
0013305720046400

mailto:clayton@cbussenterprises.com
tel:904-710-8161


0013305720034800





Governmental Management Services, LLC 
1001 Bradford Way 
Kingston, TN 37763 

Bill To: 

Villages of Westport COD 
475 West Town Place 
Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Description 

Pool Monitor Services through June 2024 

Hours/Qty 

158.6 

Invoice 

Invoice #: 76 
Invoice Date: 6/30/24 

Due Date: 6/30/24 

Case: 

P.O. Number: 

Rate Amount 

25.00 3,965.00 

Total $3,965.00 

Payments/Credits $0.00 

Balance Due $3,965.00 

0013305720034800







RECIPIENT:

Villages of Westport CDD
6702 Sandle Drive
Jacksonville, Florida 32219

Invoice #621

Issued Jul 15, 2024

Due Aug 14, 2024

Total $1,050.00
Account Balance $1,050.00

For Services Rendered

Product/Service Description Qty. Unit Price Total

Jul 10, 2024

Lighting Replacement Replace 22 existing recess can lights with new
LED low profile recess can lights.

Labor Only, this does not include light fixtures.

1 $950.00 $950.00

Goof Rings This is for 22 goof rings, the existing lights look like
they may be a little bigger than the new LED lights.

1 $100.00 $100.00

Total $1,050.00

Account balance $1,050.00
Thank you for your business. Please contact us with any questions regarding this
invoice.

Hendry Electrical Contractors
85222 Miner Road  |  Yulee, Florida 32097
9043142544  |  chendry@hendryelectrical.net  |  www.hendryelectrical.net

0013205380046000



Kilinski | Van Wyk PLLC

P.O. Box 6386

Tallahassee, Florida 32314

INVOICE

Invoice # 9867

Date: 07/11/2024

Due On: 08/10/2024

Villages of Westport CDD

GMS

475 West Town Place Suite 114

St Augustine, FL 32092

Villages of Westport CDD - 01 General

Type Attorney Date Notes Quantity Rate Discount Total

Service CL 06/05/2024 Review and finalize supervisor

notebooks; Email notebooks to

supervisors.

1.20 $265.00 - $318.00

Service JK 06/16/2024 Review/edit draft agenda and

confer with staff on same

0.20 $355.00 - $71.00

Service CL 06/18/2024 Create CDD 101 Presentation

for supervisor meeting.

1.20 $265.00 - $318.00

Service JK 06/19/2024 Review/edit CDD 101

presentation for Board meeting

0.40 $355.00 - $142.00

Service JK 06/21/2024 Update/edit CDD 101

presentation for Board meeting;

review correspondence on tax

roll and review correspondence

on property ownership for US1

changes and confer with staff

on same

0.80 $355.00 - $284.00

Service CL 06/23/2024 Analyze fiscal year 2025 budget

for compliance with law; Review

draft amenity policies; Analyze

three proposals for mulch

installation; Review proposal for

pool fencing; Analyze three

proposals for fitness equipment

preventative maintenance;

Analyze proposals for fitness

equipment purchase; Analyze

GMS proposal for pool

attendant services; Analyze

irrigation installation proposal

3.70 $265.00 - $980.50

Page 1 of 3

0013105130031500
jun general counsel



from Yellowstone; Review Oct.

23, 2023 meeting minutes for

accuracy; Review April 24,

2024 meeting minutes for

accuracy; Review May 13, 2024

meeting minutes for accuracy.

Service JK 06/24/2024 Review agenda materials,

minutes, landscape bids,

fencing bids, fitness center

improvement bids and options

for same; confer re: CDD 101

0.60 $355.00 - $213.00

Service JK 06/26/2024 Develop memo and goals/

objectives for District review for

compliance with 2024

legislative session.

0.20 $355.00 - $71.00

Service JK 06/26/2024 Finalize meeting preparations;

review US Bank inquiry; finalize

CDD 101

0.30 $355.00 - $106.50

Service CL 06/27/2024 Prepare for and attend board of

supervisor meeting.

3.50 $265.00 100.0% $0.00

Service JK 06/27/2024 Attend Board meeting 6.50 $355.00 - $2,307.50

Expense KB 06/27/2024 Travel: Mileage CL. 52.00 $0.67 100.0% $0.00

Expense KB 06/27/2024 Travel: Mileage JK. 259.50 $0.67 - $173.87

Expense KB 06/27/2024 Travel: Hotel JK. 1.00 $159.23 - $159.23

Expense KB 06/27/2024 Travel: Meals JK. 1.00 $11.90 - $11.90

Service JK 06/28/2024 Review Supervisor

correspondence on amenity

access key card process and

confer re: protocols for same;

review public records request

0.30 $355.00 - $106.50

Line Item Discount Subtotal -$962.34

Total $5,263.00

Detailed Statement of Account

Other Invoices

Invoice Number Due On Amount Due Payments Received Balance Due

8985 04/13/2024 $1,114.00 $0.00 $1,114.00

Invoice # 9867 - 07/11/2024

Page 2 of 3



Current Invoice

Invoice Number Due On Amount Due Payments Received Balance Due

9867 08/10/2024 $5,263.00 $0.00 $5,263.00

Outstanding Balance $6,377.00

Total Amount Outstanding $6,377.00

Please make all amounts payable to: Kilinski | Van Wyk PLLC

Please pay within 30 days.

Invoice # 9867 - 07/11/2024

Page 3 of 3



Kilinski | Van Wyk PLLC

P.O. Box 6386

Tallahassee, Florida 32314

INVOICE

Invoice # 9868

Date: 07/16/2024

Due On: 08/15/2024

Villages of Westport CDD

GMS

475 West Town Place Suite 114

St Augustine, FL 32092

Villages of Westport CDD - 03 Project Construction

Type Attorney Date Notes Quantity Rate Total

Service LG 06/03/2024 Review executed documents and update

files regarding same; follow up on

engineer's signature page.

0.70 $355.00 $248.50

Service LG 06/05/2024 Finalize acquisition documents; prepare

requisition and coordinate signatures on

same.

0.60 $355.00 $213.00

Total $461.50

Detailed Statement of Account

Current Invoice

Invoice Number Due On Amount Due Payments Received Balance Due

9868 08/15/2024 $461.50 $0.00 $461.50

Outstanding Balance $461.50

Total Amount Outstanding $461.50

Please make all amounts payable to: Kilinski | Van Wyk PLLC

Please pay within 30 days.

Page 1 of 1

VOWP - Note this one is Project 
Construction and will be coded 
differently than normal legal 
invoices. 

Jun Project Contruction
0013001310020000



Item/Description Unit Order Qty Quantity Unit Price Total Price

Annual Maintenance 1 1 1,186.91 1,186.91
July Billing 
7/1/2024 - 7/31/2024 
Villages/Westport-Cdd-Lake-ALL 

Amount Subject to Sales Tax 
00117

0.00 Subtotal: 1,186.91
Invoice Discount: 0.00

Total Sales Tax: 0.00

Total: 1,186.91

Amount Exempt from Sales Tax 
00117

1,186.91

Payment Amount: 0.00

Page: 1

Invoice Date:
Invoice Number:

To:
Ship

Our Order No.
P.O. Date
P.O. Number
Customer ID

Terms
Due Date
Ship Date
Ship Via

To:
Bill

INVOICE

PSI091336

7/2/2024

8794

St Augustine, FL  32092
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
GMS
Villages of Westport CDD

Net 30
8/1/2024
7/2/2024

Saint Augustin, FL  32092
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
GMS
Villages of Westport CDD

Fax #: (888) 358-0088
Phone #: (888) 480-5253
Little Rock, AR  72202
Suite H
1320 Brookwood Drive
Solitude Lake Management, LLC

7/2/2024

Please Remit Payment to:

0013205380046800



0013105130011000
7.22.24 Payroll



0013305720034500
Jul Security 



Account Number
8495 74 120 2518167

Billing Date
Jun 07, 2024

Services From
Jun 11, 2024 to Jul 10, 2024

Page
1 of 3

Hello Villages West Port,
Thanks for choosing Comcast Business.

Your bill at a glance
For 6713 SANDLE DR UNIT HMOFC, JACKSONVILLE, FL,
32219-1871

Previous balance $131.62

EFT Payment  - thank you May 29 -$131.62

Balance forward $0.00

Regular monthly charges Page 3 $129.90

Taxes, fees and other charges Page 3 $1.72

New charges $131.62

Amount due $131.62

Thanks for paying by Automatic Payment
Your automatic payment on Jun 28, 2024, will include your
amount due, plus or minus any payment related activities or
adjustments, and less any credits issued before your bill due
date.

Need help?
Visit business.comcast.com/help or see page 2 for other
ways to contact us.

Your bill explained
• This page gives you a quick summary of your monthly

bill. A detailed breakdown of your charges begins on
page 3.

Detach the bottom portion of this bill and enclose with your payment Please write your account number on your check or money order

Do not include correspondence with payment

1100 NORTHPOINT PKWY W PALM
BCH FL 33407-1937

VILLAGES WEST PORT
ATTN BEVERLY RANCHUREJEE
475 WEST TOWN PLACE, SUITE 114
SAINT AUGUSTINE, FL 32092

849574120251816700131623

Account number 8495 74 120 2518167
Automatic payment Jun 28, 2024

Please pay $131.62
Electronic payment will be applied Jun 28, 2024

COMCAST
PO BOX 71211
CHARLOTTE NC 28272-1211

http://business.comcast.com/help


Account Number
8495 74 120 2518167

Billing Date
Jun 07, 2024

Services From
Jun 11, 2024 to Jul 10, 2024

Page
2 of 3



Account Number
8495 74 120 2518167

Billing Date
Jun 07, 2024

Services From
Jun 11, 2024 to Jul 10, 2024

Page
3 of 3

Regular monthly charges $129.90

Comcast Business $106.95

Deluxe 25 $106.95
Business Internet.

Equipment & services $22.95

Equipment Fee $22.95
Internet.

Taxes, fees and other charges $1.72

Taxes & government fees $1.72

Sales Tax $1.72

What's included?
Internet: Fast, reliable internet on our
Gig-speed network

Visit business.comcast.com/myaccount for more
details

http://business.comcast.com/myaccount




225 N. Pearl St.
Jacksonville, FL

Account #:32202-4513

Bill Date:

Phone: (904) 665-6000 Online: jea.com Cycle:

Page 1 of 3

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT COMMUNITY

0230853498

06/28/24

04
Please pay by 07/22/24 to avoid 

1.5% late payment charge.

Amount Due
$213.36

225 N. Pearl St.
Jacksonville, FL

Account #:32202-4513

Bill Date:

Phone: (904) 665-6000 Online: jea.com Cycle:

Page 1 of 3

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT COMMUNITY

0230853498

06/28/24

04
Please pay by 07/22/24 to avoid 

1.5% late payment charge.

Amount Due
$213.36

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN PAYMENT STUB BELOW WITH TOTAL DUE IN ENVELOPE PROVIDED. Additional information on reverse side.

SCAN
TO PAY
ONLINE

Check here for telephone/mail address correction and fill in on reverse side.

Add $______to my monthly bill: $______for Neighbor to Neighbor and/or $______for
the Prosperity Scholarship Fund. I will notify JEA when I no longer wish to contribute.

Acct #: Bill Date:

72100230853498000000000004000021336010100000000400014

*** JEA ***
PO BOX 45047
JACKSONVILLE FL32232-5047

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT COMMUNITY

3501 QUADRANGLE BLVD STE 270

ORLANDO FL 32817-8329

0230853498 06/28/24
Please pay by 07/22/24 to avoid 1.5% late payment charge.

$213.36

����������������������������

TOTAL AMOUNT PAID

TOTAL SUMMARY OF CHARGES
$Electric ................................................. 136.70

Irrigation ............................................... 76.66

Payment(s) Received ..........................

Balance Before New Charges ..............

New Charges .......................................        $

Total New Charges .............................        $
(A complete breakdown of charges can be found on the following pages.)

$

213.36

219.59

-219.59

0.00

213.36

A late payment charge will be assessed
for unpaid balance. 213.36

Previous Balance .................................        $

Total
New Charges

$213.36

MESSAGES

Please pay $213.36 by 07/22/24 to avoid 1.5% late
payment charge and service disconnections.

Change your light bulbs to LEDs.

JEA's 2023 Annual Water Quality report is available
at jea.com/WQR2023. For a paper copy, email your
address to waterquality@jea.com or call 665-6000
to request one.



Meter
Number

Days
Billed

83710294 68
Basic MonthlyCh
Tier 1Consumptio
Environmental Ch
City of Jacksonvil
Public ServiceTax
TOTAL CURRENT WATER CHARGES

Customer Name:

Cycle:00

Billing Rate:Residential Electric Service
Service Address:
Service Period:11/10/22 - 01/17/23

Transfer Service

Visit to:

STATEMENT INFORMATION

APPLICATION AND CONTRACT FOR SERVICE–Customers may review terms and conditions of service and policies on jea.com, or may call, write or email
JEA to request a copy. Requesting of utility service and JEA’s acceptance to provide utility service, including the rendering of a bill, constitutes a binding
contractual agreement between JEA and the customer, including each financially responsible person or entity as defined be applicable State, City and Utility
regulations and policies, whether or not services is listed in that individual’s name.

Please review your billing statement. Should you suspect a billing or payment error, please notify us immediately at 665-6000. Commercial customers can
call us at 665-6250. You have 90 days from the statement date to request a JEA review for correction or credit.

Page 2 of 3

0230853498



Bill Date:Account #: Cycle:

Phone: (904) 665-6000 Online: jea.com

0230853498 06/28/24 04

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT COMMUNITY
Page 3 of 3

Bill Date:Account #: Cycle:

Phone: (904) 665-6000 Online: jea.com

0230853498 06/28/24 04

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT COMMUNITY
Page 3 of 3

ELECTRIC SERVICE
Billing Rate:
Service Address:

Reading Date:Service Period:

General Service
12060 BRADDOCK RD

05/28/24 - 06/26/24 06/26/24
Service Point: Commercial - Electric

Meter
Number

Current
Reading

Reading
Type

Days
Billed

ConsumptionMeter
Constant

24072186 29 38022 Regular 1 373 KWH

Basic Monthly Charge 21.00$

Energy Charge ($0.06276 per kWh) 23.41
Tax Exempt Fuel Cost ($0.02712 per kWh) 10.12
Taxable Fuel Cost ($0.00511 per kWh) 1.91
City of Jacksonville Franchise Fee 1.69
Gross Receipts Tax 1.49

59.62Total Current Electric Charges $

IRRIGATION SERVICE
Billing Rate:
Service Address:

Reading Date:Service Period:

Commercial Irrigation Service
12060 BRADDOCK RD

05/29/24 - 06/28/24 06/28/24
Service Point: Irrigation 1 - Commercial

Meter
Number

Current
Reading

Reading
Type

Days
Billed

Consumption
(1 cu ft = 7.48 gal)

Meter
Size

8193073 30 2339 Regular 1 1/2 3000 GAL

Basic Monthly Charge 63.00$

Tier 1 Consumption (1-14 kgal @ $3.81) 11.43
City of Jacksonville Franchise Fee 2.23

76.66Total Current Irrigation Charges $

ELECTRIC SERVICE
Billing Rate:
Service Address:

Reading Date:Service Period:

General Service
12424 CADLEY CIR

05/28/24 - 06/26/24 06/26/24
Service Point: Irrigation 1 - Electric

Meter
Number

Current
Reading

Reading
Type

Days
Billed

ConsumptionMeter
Constant

24072169 29 31217 Regular 1 547 KWH

Basic Monthly Charge 21.00$

Energy Charge ($0.06276 per kWh) 34.33
Tax Exempt Fuel Cost ($0.02712 per kWh) 14.83
Taxable Fuel Cost ($0.00511 per kWh) 2.80
City of Jacksonville Franchise Fee 2.19
Gross Receipts Tax 1.93

77.08Total Current Electric Charges $

Last Month Average Daily1 Year Ago This Month

Total kWh Used

Total Gallons Used

932 1,072 920 32

118,000 1,000 3,000 100

CONSUMPTION HISTORY



225 N. Pearl St.
Jacksonville, FL

Account #:32202-4513

Bill Date:

Phone: (904) 665-6000 Online: jea.com Cycle:

Page 1 of 3

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT CDD

8245040569

06/27/24

04
Please pay by 07/19/24 to avoid 

1.5% late payment charge.

Amount Due
$2,360.09

225 N. Pearl St.
Jacksonville, FL

Account #:32202-4513

Bill Date:

Phone: (904) 665-6000 Online: jea.com Cycle:

Page 1 of 3

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT CDD

8245040569

06/27/24

04
Please pay by 07/19/24 to avoid 

1.5% late payment charge.

Amount Due
$2,360.09

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN PAYMENT STUB BELOW WITH TOTAL DUE IN ENVELOPE PROVIDED. Additional information on reverse side.

SCAN
TO PAY
ONLINE

Check here for telephone/mail address correction and fill in on reverse side.

Add $______to my monthly bill: $______for Neighbor to Neighbor and/or $______for
the Prosperity Scholarship Fund. I will notify JEA when I no longer wish to contribute.

Acct #: Bill Date:

92608245040569000000000004000236009010100000000400017

*** JEA ***
PO BOX 45047
JACKSONVILLE FL32232-5047

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT CDD

3501 QUADRANGLE BLVD STE 270

ORLANDO FL 32817-8329

8245040569 06/27/24
Please pay by 07/19/24 to avoid 1.5% late payment charge.

$2,360.09

����������������������������

TOTAL AMOUNT PAID

TOTAL SUMMARY OF CHARGES
$Electric ................................................. 673.15

Water .................................................... 89.92

Sewer ................................................... 251.92

Irrigation ............................................... 1,345.10

Payment(s) Received ..........................

Balance Before New Charges ..............

New Charges .......................................        $

Total New Charges .............................        $
(A complete breakdown of charges can be found on the following pages.)

$

2,360.09

2,492.76

-2,492.76

0.00

2,360.09

A late payment charge will be assessed
for unpaid balance. 2,360.09

Previous Balance .................................        $

Total
New Charges

$2,360.09

MESSAGES

Please pay $2,360.09 by 07/19/24 to avoid 1.5%
late payment charge and service disconnections.

Change your light bulbs to LEDs.

JEA's 2023 Annual Water Quality report is available
at jea.com/WQR2023. For a paper copy, email your
address to waterquality@jea.com or call 665-6000
to request one.



Meter
Number

Days
Billed

83710294 68
Basic MonthlyCh
Tier 1Consumptio
Environmental Ch
City of Jacksonvil
Public ServiceTax
TOTAL CURRENT WATER CHARGES

Customer Name:

Cycle:00

Billing Rate:Residential Electric Service
Service Address:
Service Period:11/10/22 - 01/17/23

Transfer Service

Visit to:

STATEMENT INFORMATION

APPLICATION AND CONTRACT FOR SERVICE–Customers may review terms and conditions of service and policies on jea.com, or may call, write or email
JEA to request a copy. Requesting of utility service and JEA’s acceptance to provide utility service, including the rendering of a bill, constitutes a binding
contractual agreement between JEA and the customer, including each financially responsible person or entity as defined be applicable State, City and Utility
regulations and policies, whether or not services is listed in that individual’s name.

Please review your billing statement. Should you suspect a billing or payment error, please notify us immediately at 665-6000. Commercial customers can
call us at 665-6250. You have 90 days from the statement date to request a JEA review for correction or credit.

Page 2 of 3

8245040569



Bill Date:Account #: Cycle:

Phone: (904) 665-6000 Online: jea.com

8245040569 06/27/24 04

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT CDD
Page 3 of 3

Bill Date:Account #: Cycle:

Phone: (904) 665-6000 Online: jea.com

8245040569 06/27/24 04

VILLAGES OF WESTPORT CDD
Page 3 of 3

ELECTRIC SERVICE
Billing Rate:
Service Address:

Reading Date:Service Period:

General Service
6714 SANDLE DR

05/28/24 - 06/26/24 06/26/24
Service Point: Commercial - Electric

Meter
Number

Current
Reading

Reading
Type

Days
Billed

ConsumptionMeter
Constant

22960690 29 45473 Regular 1 6487 KWH

Basic Monthly Charge 21.00$

Energy Charge ($0.06276 per kWh) 407.12
Tax Exempt Fuel Cost ($0.02712 per kWh) 175.93
Taxable Fuel Cost ($0.00511 per kWh) 33.15
City of Jacksonville Franchise Fee 19.12
Gross Receipts Tax 16.83

673.15Total Current Electric Charges $

WATER SERVICE
Billing Rate:
Service Address:

Reading Date:Service Period:

Commercial Water Service
6714 SANDLE DR

05/27/24 - 06/25/24 06/25/24
Service Point: Commercial - Water/Sewer

Meter
Number

Current
Reading

Reading
Type

Days
Billed

Consumption
(1 cu ft = 7.48 gal)

Meter
Size

77680745 29 2142 Regular 1 30000 GAL

Basic Monthly Charge 31.50$

Water Consumption Charge 55.80
City of Jacksonville Franchise Fee 2.62

89.92Total Current Water Charges $

SEWER SERVICE
Billing Rate:
Service Address:

Reading Date:Service Period:

Commercial Sewer Service
6714 SANDLE DR

05/27/24 - 06/25/24 06/25/24
Service Point: Commercial - Water/Sewer

Meter
Number

Current
Reading

Reading
Type

Days
Billed

Consumption
(1 cu ft = 7.48 gal)

Meter
Size

77680745 29 2142 Regular 1 30000 GAL

Basic Monthly Charge 52.88$

Sewer Usage Charge 191.70
City of Jacksonville Franchise Fee 7.34

251.92Total Current Sewer Charges $

IRRIGATION SERVICE
Billing Rate:
Service Address:

Reading Date:Service Period:

Commercial Irrigation Service
6714 SANDLE DR

05/27/24 - 06/25/24 06/25/24
Service Point: Irrigation 1 - Commercial

Meter
Number

Current
Reading

Reading
Type

Days
Billed

Consumption
(1 cu ft = 7.48 gal)

Meter
Size

76679032 29 18889 Regular 2 280000 GAL

Basic Monthly Charge 100.80$

Tier 1 Consumption (1-14 kgal @ $3.81) 53.35
Tier 2 Consumption (> 14 kgal @ $4.33) 1,151.77
City of Jacksonville Franchise Fee 39.18

1,345.10Total Current Irrigation Charges $

Last Month Average Daily1 Year Ago This Month

Total kWh Used

Total Gallons Used

6,004 6,753 6,487 224

289,000 339,000 310,000 10,690

CONSUMPTION HISTORY



Account Number
8495 74 120 2518167

Billing Date
Jul 07, 2024

Services From
Jul 11, 2024 to Aug 10, 2024

Page
1 of 3

Hello Villages West Port,
Thanks for choosing Comcast Business.

Your bill at a glance
For 6713 SANDLE DR UNIT HMOFC, JACKSONVILLE, FL,
32219-1871

Previous balance $131.62

EFT Payment  - thank you Jun 29 -$131.62

Balance forward $0.00

Regular monthly charges Page 3 $129.90

Taxes, fees and other charges Page 3 $1.72

New charges $131.62

Amount due $131.62

Thanks for paying by Automatic Payment
Your automatic payment on Jul 28, 2024, will include your
amount due, plus or minus any payment related activities or
adjustments, and less any credits issued before your bill due
date.

Need help?
Visit business.comcast.com/help or see page 2 for other
ways to contact us.

Your bill explained
• This page gives you a quick summary of your monthly

bill. A detailed breakdown of your charges begins on
page 3.

Detach the bottom portion of this bill and enclose with your payment Please write your account number on your check or money order

Do not include correspondence with payment

1100 NORTHPOINT PKWY W PALM
BCH FL 33407-1937

VILLAGES WEST PORT
ATTN BEVERLY RANCHUREJEE
475 WEST TOWN PLACE, SUITE 114
SAINT AUGUSTINE, FL 32092

849574120251816700131623

Account number 8495 74 120 2518167
Automatic payment Jul 28, 2024

Please pay $131.62
Electronic payment will be applied Jul 28, 2024

COMCAST
PO BOX 71211
CHARLOTTE NC 28272-1211

http://business.comcast.com/help


Account Number
8495 74 120 2518167

Billing Date
Jul 07, 2024

Services From
Jul 11, 2024 to Aug 10, 2024

Page
2 of 3



Account Number
8495 74 120 2518167

Billing Date
Jul 07, 2024

Services From
Jul 11, 2024 to Aug 10, 2024

Page
3 of 3

Regular monthly charges $129.90

Comcast Business $106.95

Deluxe 25 $106.95
Business Internet.

Equipment & services $22.95

Equipment Fee $22.95
Internet.

Taxes, fees and other charges $1.72

Taxes & government fees $1.72

Sales Tax $1.72

What's included?
Internet: Fast, reliable internet on our
Gig-speed network

Visit business.comcast.com/myaccount for more
details

http://business.comcast.com/myaccount






12111 LEM TURNER RD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32218 (904)766-2818

  6351  00052  40239    07/03/24  07:31 PM
  SALE CASHIER ZANIYYAH

  085334692350 35' VAC HOSE <A>
     HDX 35' VACUUM HOSE
     2@49.98                        99.96N
  018578000483 QWICK CAP <A>         4.13N
     1-1/2" CAP FOR CI,ST,PL,CU

                   SUBTOTAL        104.09
                   SALES TAX         0.00
  TAX EXEMPT
                   TOTAL          $104.09
  XXXXXXXXXXXX4050 VISA
                              USD$ 104.09
  AUTH CODE 851036/2524948             TA
  Chip Read
  AID A0000000980840             US DEBIT

  P.O.#/JOB NAME: S

6351 07/03/24 07:31 PM

6351 52 40239 07/03/2024 3765

RETURN POLICY DEFINITIONS
      POLICY ID   DAYS   POLICY EXPIRES ON
   A      1       90        10/01/2024

***************************************
DID WE NAIL IT?

Take a short survey for a chance TO WIN
A $5,000 HOME DEPOT GIFT CARD

Opine en español

www.homedepot.com/survey

User ID: H89 87118 80819
PASSWORD: 24353 80767

Entries must be completed within 14 days
of purchase. Entrants must be 18 or
older to enter. See complete rules on

website. No purchase necessary.

Page 1 of 1





Packing slip

For customer support visit Amazon.com/contact-us

Order date: July 8, 2024

Purchase Order #:

Order #: 113-6472184-4819418

Date shipped: July 8, 2024

Ship to:
Timothy Harden
16578 YELLOW BLUFF RD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32226-1159
United States

GL code: 51010 Repairs & Maintenance

Cost center: Northeast

Location: DSD - Villages of Westport

Custom info: Non-Billable

Shipment details

Item description Qty Item price Item subtotal

Dial Professional Gold Antibacterial Liquid Hand Soap, 1 Gallon Refill Bottle (SKU:
B000JK3M0G)
Condition: New
Sold by: Amazon.com Services, Inc
Gift message: ""

1 $24.99 $24.99

Evhome Manual Soap Dispenser Kitchen Bathroom Wall Mounted Commercial for Liquid
Containers Shampoo Gel Chamber Plastic - (33.8 oz) 1000ml (SKU: E-ABS1000ML)
Condition: New
Sold by: Chenzhidong
Gift message: "; "

2 $16.10 $32.20

Item subtotal $57.19
Shipping & handling $0.00
Sales tax $4.29

Total $61.48

Return or replace your item
Visit Amazon.com/returns

Have feedback on how we packaged your order? Tell us at Amazon.com/packaging 1/1





Packing slip

For customer support visit Amazon.com/contact-us

Order date: July 23, 2024

Purchase Order #:

Order #: 113-5227206-0179451

Date shipped: July 25, 2024

Ship to:
Timothy Harden
16578 YELLOW BLUFF RD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32226-1159
United States

GL code: 51003 Housekeeping Janitorial

Cost center: Northeast

Location: DSD - Tison's Landing

Custom info: Non-Billable

Shipment details

Item description Qty Item price Item subtotal

Tork Multifold Hand Towel White H2, Universal, 100% Recycled Fibers, 16 x 250 Towels,
MB540A (SKU: B00M6XTBJK)
Condition: New
Sold by: Amazon.com Services, Inc
Gift message: ""

1 $38.83 $38.83

Item subtotal $38.83
Shipping & handling $0.00
Sales tax $2.91

Total $41.74

Return or replace your item
Visit Amazon.com/returns

Have feedback on how we packaged your order? Tell us at Amazon.com/packaging 1/1



Packing slip

For customer support visit Amazon.com/contact-us

Order date: July 24, 2024

Purchase Order #:

Order #: 113-8477084-4250619

Date shipped: July 25, 2024

Ship to:
Timothy Harden
16578 YELLOW BLUFF RD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32226-1159
United States

GL code: 51003 Housekeeping Janitorial

Cost center: Northeast

Location: DSD - Tison's Landing

Custom info: Non-Billable

Shipment details

Item description Qty Item price Item subtotal

POOCHPOO Heavy-Duty Dog Waste Can Liners - Case of 100 Bags (SKU: POOCH-CL-100)
Condition: New
Sold by: All Greens Chemicals Inc.
Gift message: ""

1 $34.79 $34.79

Amazon Basics Disinfecting Wipes, Lemon & Fresh Scent, Sanitizes, Cleans, Disinfects &
Deodorizes, 255 Count (3 Packs of 85) (SKU: B07F246YG1)
Condition: New
Sold by: Amazon.com Services, Inc
Gift message: ""

1 $9.17 $9.17

Item subtotal $43.96
Shipping & handling $0.00
Sales tax $3.30

Total $47.26

Return or replace your item
Visit Amazon.com/returns

Have feedback on how we packaged your order? Tell us at Amazon.com/packaging 1/1



Packing slip

For customer support visit Amazon.com/contact-us

Order date: July 29, 2024

Purchase Order #:

Order #: 113-9562800-2963400

Date shipped: July 29, 2024

Ship to:
Timothy Harden
16578 YELLOW BLUFF RD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32226-1159
United States

GL code: 51010 Repairs & Maintenance

Cost center: Northeast

Location: DSD - Tison's Landing

Custom info: Non-Billable

Shipment details

Item description Qty Item price Item subtotal

LAO XUE Basketball Net Outdoor,(7.16 oz) 12 Loops Professional Heavy Duty Basketball Net
Replacement,All Weather Anti Whip, Suitable for Outdoor Standard 12 Loops Basketball Hoop
(SKU: 170295-tnj)
Condition: New
Sold by: sichuanshengzhidongquanchendianzishangwuyouxiangon
Gift message: "; "

2 $7.90 $15.80

Item subtotal $15.80
Shipping & handling $0.00
Sales tax $1.18

Total $16.98

Return or replace your item
Visit Amazon.com/returns

Have feedback on how we packaged your order? Tell us at Amazon.com/packaging 1/1


	Agenda
	III.       Presentation Regarding CDDs
	IV. Acceptance of Vesta Resignation Letter
	V.        Ratification of Acknowledgement and Release
	VI.       Discussion of Agreement for Mulch Installation
	VII. A. 2.         VerdeGo
	3.         Koehn Outdoor
	4.         Brightview
	B. 1.         Lake Maintenance – Solitude
	2.         Landscape - Yellowstone
	C. 1.         C&L Landscape
	2.         Yellowstone
	3.         Down to Earth
	VIII.    Information Regarding Insurance Purposes
	IX. A. 1.         Discussion of New Homebuyer Welcome Letter
	2.         Update on Email Blast System and Fitness Room Survey
	C.                                                                          Operation Manager - Report
	XII. A.        Approval of the Minutes of the July 22, 2024 Meeting
	B. Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues & Expenditures for the Period Ending July 31, 2024
	C.        Assessment Receipt Schedule
	D.        Approval of Check Register



